# Data from the 1910 Land Valuation Survey for the parish of Hallow North



Prepared by Gillian Ellis, Caroline Norcott and Alan Wadsworth

# Contents

Introduction	2
1. The Valuation Office Survey of 1910	2
2. The parish of Hallow North in 1910	3
3. Land and property in 1910 in the parish of Hallow North	4
Appendix 1. Transcribed data from the Valuation Summary for the parish of Hallow North	6
Appendix 2. Index of Owners	47
Appendix 3. Index of Occupiers	50
Appendix 4. Index of Places	54
Appendix 5. References to other Land Valuation resources for Hallow North	56
Appendix 6. Data standardisations made for the parish of Hallow North.	57

**Front cover image:** Tudor Cottage, Church Lane, Hallow in November 2022 <u>https://www.geograph.org.uk/photo/7356949</u> [accessed 11 February 2025] © Jeff Gogarty and licensed for reuse under <u>creativecommons.org/licenses/by-sa/2.0.</u>

#### Introduction

The Valuation Office Survey of 1910 resulted in the creation of a snapshot of land across the county of Worcestershire, in common with other counties in England. The associated Valuation Summary books are to be found at the Hive in Worcester: these books are of a large format, measuring 43cm by 34cm, cloth-bound with leather corners and the name of the Income Tax Parish (ITP) written on the spine. An ITP may cover just a single civil parish in the county, whilst some ITPs covered two or more parishes: for example, the ITP of Church Lench only contains records for the civil parish of Church Lench, whilst that of Abbots Lench covers the civil parishes of Fladbury, Hill & Moor, Throckmorton and Wyre Piddle, as well as Abbots Lench itself. In some cases, two or more ITPs can be found in the same Valuation Summary book: for example, Conderton and Overbury. The basic unit of valuation was a piece of land in separate occupation, although the application of this principle was not always straightforward.<sup>1</sup> The number of valuation assessments in each ITP ranges across the county from 1 (Crutch) to 7,171 (Kidderminster Borough).

This series of booklets provides a transcription of the Valuation Summary books for each civil parish in the county of Worcestershire, along with a brief analysis of the transcribed data.

## 1. The Valuation Office Survey of 1910

The valuation of land in 1910 was initiated by the Finance (1909-1910) Act (10 Edw. VII, c.8 section 26(1)) which provided for the levy and collection of a duty on the increment value of all land in the United Kingdom. The main object of the Act was to tax that part of the capital appreciation of real property which was attributable to the site itself, excluding any benefit arising from crops, buildings or improvements paid for by the owners. In this way, private owners were required to pay part of the increase in the site value of their land which had resulted from the expenditure of public money on communal developments such as roads or public services.

Increment value duty was based on the difference between the amount of two valuations. The first was the site value as at 30 April 1909, as determined by the Valuation Survey, which constituted the 'datum line' for these purposes: a second site valuation was to be taken on the occasion of any subsequent sale or grant of a lease, transfer of interest in a piece of land, or the subsequent death of a land owner, in order to determine any potential payment of increment value duty. This second assessment formed part of the on-going role of the Valuation Office, until this duty was repealed by the 1920 Finance Act (10 and 11 Geo. V, c.18). Although this legislation was only in place for around ten years, it has left behind a comprehensive record of land in every county enabling an understanding of the ownership, occupation, extent and value of land. The data collected during the survey for the county of Worcestershire, which has been retained, is contained in four different sets:

- The Valuation Summary books (sometimes referred to as the Lloyd George Domesday books): these are held at the Hive in Worcester (WAAS: BA8585/1 series);
- Forms 37 Land: these contain the provisional valuations, and are also held at the Hive in Worcester (WAAS: 8585/2-64 series);

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> See Brian Short, *Land and Society in Edwardian Britain* (Cambridge: Cambridge University Press, 1997), pp 131-132.

- Two series of annotated Ordnance Survey maps: the Field Maps (used in the field during survey), some of which are now held at the Hive in Worcester; the Record Maps (originally kept in the Valuation Record office) now held at the National Archives at Kew (TNA: IR129 series);
- The Field Books which contain a complete record of each valuation: again, these are held at the National Archives at Kew (TNA: IR58 series).

With regard to the Valuation Summary books, the first nine columns were compiled from the Rate Book for the parish and all of the books contain this information. Subsequent columns (10-40) were supposed to be completed by the staff of the District Valuation Offices after the initial valuation was complete: however, this was not carried out in a consistent fashion, and indeed, anyone interested in the mechanics and outcome of an individual valuation would be better served by the details contained in the Field Books.

This series of booklets provides a transcription of the first nine columns in that these record the ownership, occupation, extent, and basic valuation of each assessment. After a brief introduction to the parish, an analysis of the data will be presented examining the names of the major landowners and the extent of their property in the parish, along with an analysis of the main farms in the parish. Indexes of owners, occupiers and places appear in subsequent appendices and a final appendix will direct the reader to the appropriate references for the associated Forms 37, Record Maps and Field Books for the parish covered by the booklet.

This booklet presents the data for the civil parish of Hallow North: it has been taken from the summary book for the Income Tax Parish of Hallow North which covers the civil parishes of Hallow North and [Worcester] St. John County.<sup>2</sup>

#### 2. The parish of Hallow North in 1910

The parish is located 3 miles north-west of Worcester on a geology described as 'Sidmouth Mudstone Formation', extending to 3,338 acres. The resulting soils are primarily slightly-acid, loamy & clayey soils with impeded drainage, along with some slowly permeable, seasonally wet, slightly-acid but base-rich, loamy & clayey soils, and some freely draining, slightly-acid soils.<sup>3</sup>

When the census was carried out in 1911, the population of Hallow North was 1,361 (655 males and 706 females): of the 365 properties recorded in the census, 330 were inhabited, 22 were uninhabited, and 13 were classed as a 'building not used as dwelling'.<sup>4</sup> From an agricultural viewpoint in the same year, the total cultivated area of the parish was 3,162<sup>3</sup>/<sub>4</sub> acres, of which 778<sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub> were arable, and 2,384<sup>1</sup>/<sub>4</sub> acres (75% of the total) were grassland: this included 238<sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub> acres of orchards. Of the 54 agricultural holdings in the parish, 48 were tenanted properties covering 2,729<sup>1</sup>/<sub>4</sub> acres (86% of the total). The main arable crops were wheat, oats, and beans, whilst the orchards were growing a range of top fruit. With more pasture land than arable, 759 cattle and 1,097 sheep were kept.<sup>5</sup>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> WAAS: BA 8585/1/49, Inland Revenue. Valuation Summary book for the parish of Hallow, St. John's [in Rushwick], 1909-10.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Kelly's Directory 1912, pp. 132-133. British Geological Survey, *Geology Viewer – Hallow, Worcestershire* <u>geologyviewer.bgs.ac.uk</u> [accessed 21 March 2025]; British Geological Survey, *UK Soil Observatory (UKSO) Map Viewer – Hallow, Worcestershire* <u>https://mapapps2.bgs.ac.uk/ukso/home.html</u> [accessed 21 March 2025]. <sup>4</sup> TNA: RG78/1078. *1911 Census Enumerator's Summary Books. Worcestershire. Martley. Registration Sub-District: Leigh, including Civil Parish, Township or Place: North Hallow.* 

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> TNA: MAF68/2489, *Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food and predecessors: Statistics Divisions: Parish Summaries of Agricultural Returns. Worcestershire, 1911.* Main acreages of arable as follows: Wheat, 200<sup>1</sup>/<sub>4</sub>; Oats, 157<sup>1</sup>/<sub>4</sub>; Beans, 116. Orchard acreages: Apples, 169<sup>1</sup>/<sub>4</sub>; Plums, 29; Cherries, 7<sup>1</sup>/<sub>4</sub>; Pears, 4; Other kinds, 29.

## 3. Land and property in 1910 in the parish of Hallow North

In preparing the data for analysis, a series of standardisations have been made: see Appendix 6 for full details.

Of the 452 assessments with owners recorded in the Valuation Summary, 48 were owned by Mrs. Wheeley Lea and 28 were owned by the executors of Admiral Britten: these two individuals were also the major landowners in terms of acreage as shown in Table 2. The Ecclesiastical Commissioners were lords of the manor.

Name	No. of assessments
Mrs. Wheeley Lea	46
Admiral Britten, Exors.	25
William Harper	11
Lord, Exors.	10
147 others with 9 or less assessments each	347
Not stated	3
TOTAL	442

Table 1: Number of assessments by landowner

Table 2 shows the acreage of land in the parish by major landowner, determined by summing the entries in the Valuation Summary.

Name	1	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$			
	a	r	р		
Admiral Britten, Exors. of	978	2	20		
Mrs. Wheeley Lea	312	1	0		
Mrs. Alice G. Lee-Williams	252	1	0		
Lord, Exors.	246	0	0		
Earl Beauchamp	240	1	0		
Wm. Gardiner	194	1	0		
John Leeds	159	3	0		
H. Woodward	159	3	0		
Thos. Garmston Hyde	143	0	0		
W. E. Rowland	124	0	0		
Mrs. R. H. Bamber	52	2	0		
8 others with between 10 and 50 acres each	194	1	0		
10 others with between 5 and 10 acres each	66	2	0		
54 others with less than 5 acres each	67	0	0		
TOTAL	3190	1	20		

Table 2: Acreage of land by major landowner

Those assessments with more than 50 acres of land are listed in Table 3.

Occupier	Situation	Α	creage	
		a	r	р
Admiral Britten	Woodhall Mill Farm	249	0	0
William Fisher	Park Farm	211	0	0
John Leeds	Shoulton	159	3	0
Henry Hooper	Green Street Farm	159	3	0
Admiral Britten	Peachley Farm	159	0	0
George Cooper	Peachley Court	146	0	0
Thos. Boaz	Partridge Farm	143	0	0
J. J. Jenkins	Green Hill Farm	136	3	0
Willm. Roddick	The Elms	135	0	0
Mrs. Wheeley Lea	Parkfield	134	0	0
Chas. Vincent Dipper	Hill Farm	133	2	0
Frank Wilson	Shoulton	124	0	0
Mrs. Wheeley Lea	Eastbury Manor	123	1	0
Admiral Britten	Woodhall Mill	104	0	0
John Wheeler	Heath Farm	100	1	0
Herbert Smith	Peachley	95	1	0
Herbert Smith	Peachley	91	2	0
Willm. Gardiner	Shoulton	77	1	0
Willm. Gardiner	Shoulton	67	2	0
Thomas Boaz	French Lands	52	2	0
John Wheeler	Hallow	51	1	0

## Table 3: Assessments in excess of 50 acres

Appendix 1. Transcribed data from the Valuation Summary for the parish of Hallow North.

1. This data has been transcribed as presented in the Valuation Summary without any standardisation of punctuation, abbreviation &c. However, all data presented as superscripts has been included as normal text in this transcription.

2. For those entries where there is no owner or occupier, these are excluded from the analysis and indexes in Appendices 2, 3 and 4, and are greyed out in the table below.

								imato xtent		Gross va	annı due	ıal		eable due	
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
16	1	Allen William	Lamberts & Rogers Edith Walk, Malvern (Solrs & Agents for the Owner)	House		Hallow Mill				15	0	0	12	0	0
1	1a	Allen William	Lamberts & Rogers Edith Walk, Malvern (Solrs & Agents for the Owner)	Land		Hallow Mill	8	1	0	12	0	0	10	15	0
1				Mill & Bakehouse		262				13	0	0	9	15	0
2	2	Pratt Henry	Barber <del>'s Exors</del> Revd John Stephen The Sands, Farnham Surrey	Land		Hallow	5	1	0	15	0	0	13	10	0
3	3	Pratt Henry	Earl Beauchamp Madresfield Ct., Malvern	Land		Hallow	2	1	0	6	2	6	5	10	0
4	4	Fisher William	Earl Beauchamp	House		Park Farm				48	0	0	38	10	0
4	4a	Fisher William	Earl Beauchamp	Land		Park Farm	211	0	0	181	0	0	162	15	0
5	4b	Pratt Henry	Earl Beauchamp Mrs C. W. Lea	Land		Hallow	2	0	0	6	0	0	5	10	0

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> The Owner was originally written as 'Lambert & Rogers': '& Rogers' was then crossed through and the letter 's' added to 'Lambert'. Both 'Lambert & Rogers' and 'Lamberts' appear in the Index of Owners in Appendix 2.

assessment Poor								imate xtent	ed	Gross va	annı due	ıal		eable due	
	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
6	5	Wood Francis	Earl Beauchamp	Land		The Park	27	0	0	54	0	0	48	10	0
7	6	Medlicott Thos.	Medlicott Thos. Elm Cott:, Hallow, Wor:	Land		Hallow		2	0	2	0	0	1	15	0
8	7	Cooper George	The Exors of late Britten Adml R. F Britten per Hon: Blanche Cecile Britten, Kenswick Manor, Worcester	House		Peachley Court				32	0	0	25	10	0
8	a	Cooper George	The Exors of late Britten Adml R. F Britten per Hon: Blanche Cecile Britten, Kenswick Manor, Worcester	Land		Peachley Court	146	0	0	114	2	2	102	15	0
97	8	Admiral Britten per Grandson Saml. (Stockman, Rent free as part wages)	The Exors of late Britten Adml R. F Britten per Hon: Blanche Cecile Britten, Kenswick Manor, Worcester	Woodhall Mill						18	0	0	14	10	0
9	8a	Britten Admiral	Britten Admiral The Exors of See No. 8	House		19				18	0	0	14	10	0
9	8a	Britten Admiral	Britten Admiral The Exors of See No. 8	Land		Woodhall Mill	104	0	0	122	17	6	110	10	0
10	9	Gasett	Britten Admiral The Exors of See No. 8	House		Woodhall Mill Farm				40	0	0	32	0	0
10	9a	Britten Admiral	Britten Admiral The Exors of See No. 8	Land		Woodhall Mill Farm	249	0	0	175	0	0	157	10	0
11	10	Powell John	Britten Admiral The Exors of See No. 8	House		Peachley Farm				24	0	0	19	5	0

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup> According to the 1911 Census, Samuel Grandon, Farm Labourer lived at Martley Road, Lower Broadheath. TNA: RG14/17614.

	No. of No. of assessment Poor							imate xtent	ed	Gross va	annı alue	ıal		eable due	
		Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	Α	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
11	10a	Britten Admiral	Britten Admiral The Exors of See No. 8	Land		Peachley Farm	159	0	0	130	1	6	117	0	0
12	10b	Smith Herbert	Britten Admiral The Exors of See No. 8	Land		Ashfield	4	0	0	9	3	0	8	5	0
13	11	Dipper Chas. Vincent	Britten Admiral The Exors of See No. 8	House		Hill Farm				32	0	0	25	10	0
13	11a	Dipper Chas. Vincent	Britten Admiral The Exors of See No. 8	Land		Hill Farm	133	2	0	70	0	0	63	0	0
14	11b	Dipper Chas. Vincent	Britten Admiral The Exors of See No. 8	Sporting Rights		Hill Farm				13	0	0	12	15	0
15	12	Maund <del>Miss</del> Wm. Hy	Baldwin William Bamber Mrs R. H Netherby, Leckhampton Rd, Cheltenham	House		French Lands				20	0	0	16	0	0
15	12a	Boaz Thomas	Baldwin William Bamber Mrs R. H Netherby, Leckhampton Rd, Cheltenham	Land		French Lands	52	2	0	60	0	0	54	0	0
15				2 cottages		44/89				20	0	0	17	0	0
16	13	Maylett Thomas	Hicks Caleb 14 Bridge St, Wor:	Cottage		Broadheath				10	0	0	8	0	0
16	13a	Maylett Thomas	Hicks Caleb 14 Bridge St, Wor:	Garden		Broadheath	1	1	0	5	0	0	4	10	0
17	14	Daniel Chas.	Cox Miss Bests Exors	Land		Broadheath	6	3	0	14	0	0	12	10	0
18	15	Till Chas.	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Land		Eastbury	26	0	0	43	0	0	38	15	0
18				Cottage		489				5	5	0	4	0	0

No. of No. of assessment Poor								imate xtent		Gross va	annu alue	ıal		eable lue	
	Seessment     Poor Rate       19 <sup>8</sup> 16	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	Α	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
19 <sup>8</sup>	16	<del>Smith Fredk</del> . Williams Frank	Smith Fredk Hallow, Wor:	Land		Shoulton Rd	12	2	0						
20	17	<del>Smith Fredk</del> . Williams Frank	Smith Fredk Hallow, Wor:	Land		Hallow	2	1	0						
21	18	Gardiner Willm.	Gardiner Wm. Headways Farm Hallow	House		Shoulton				8	5	0	6	15	0
21	18a	Gardiner Willm.	Gardiner Wm. Headways Farm Hallow	Land		Shoulton	67	2	0	71	15	0	64	10	0
22	19	Gardiner Willm.	Gardiner Wm. Headways Farm Hallow	House		Shoulton				20	0	0	16	0	0
22	19a	Gardiner Willm.	Gardiner Wm. Headways Farm Hallow	Land		Shoulton	77	1	0	75	0	0	67	10	0
23	20	Minett Thos.	Gardiner Wm. Headways Farm Hallow	Cottage		Shoulton				8	0	0	6	10	0
23	20a	Gardiner Wm.	Gardiner Wm. Headways Farm Hallow	Land		Shoulton	27	0	0	22	0	0	19	15	0
24	21	Oliver Chas.	Gardiner Wm. Headways Farm Hallow	Cottage		Shoulton				8	0	0	6	10	0
24	21a	Gardiner Willm.	Gardiner Wm. Headways Farm Hallow	Land		Shoulton	22	2	0	17	0	0	15	5	0
25	22	Young George	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Land		Hallow	2	0	0	6	2	6	5	10	0
26	23	Rowley Geo: N	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Cottage		The Green				9	0	0	7	15	0
26	23a	Lea Mrs Wheeley	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Land		The Green	2	0	0	4	0	0	3	10	0
27	23b	Young Misses	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Cottage		The Green				14	0	0	12	0	0
28	23c	Aspey Wm.	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Cottage		The Green				10	0	0	8	10	0

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>8</sup> For this entry and the following entry, a combined Gross Annual Value of £34 5s 0d and Rateable Value if £30 10s 0d were given.

								imate xtent		Gross va	annu alue	ıal		eable lue	
No. of assessmentNo. of Poor Rate2923d		Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
29	23d	Thorpe Joseph	Thorpe Joseph	Land		The Pinch	1	3	0	1	0	0	1	0	0
30	23e	Nind John	Nind John	Land		Hallow	1	2	0	1	10	0	1	5	0
31	23f	Boddington Geo Griffiths Tyler	Boddington Geo	Land		Hallow & Shoulton Rd	2	0	0	2	0	0	1	15	0
32	24	Fortey John	Pritchard's Exors (per Joseph Coleman, Sunnyside, Bath Rd, Wor:)	House		Crown Inn, Peachley				16	0	0	12	15	0
32	а	Fortey John	Pritchard's Exors (per Joseph Coleman, Sunnyside, Bath Rd, Wor:)	Land		Peachley	6	0	0	10	0	0	9	0	0
32						177	1	2	0	8	0	0	7	5	0
33	25	Palmer Mrs. A	Rea Fras. Holland 3 Tavistock Place, Cheltenham	Land		Peachley	10	0	0	20	0	0	18	0	0
34	26	Boaz Thos.	Hyde Thos. Garmston 21 Foregate St, Wor:	House		Partridge Farm				40	0	0	32	0	0
34	a	Boaz Thos.	Hyde Thos. Garmston 21 Foregate St, Wor:	Land		Partridge Farm	143	0	0	135	0	0	121	10	0
34				2 Cottages		508/9				10	0	0	7	10	0
35	28	Roddick Willm.	Britten Admiral, The Exors of See No. 8	House		The Elms				35	0	0	28	0	0
35	а	Roddick Willm.	Britten Admiral, The Exors of See No. 8	Land		The Elms	135	0	0	87	15	0	79	0	0
35				2 Cottages		506/7				8	0	0	6	0	0
36	b	Britten Admiral	Britten Admiral, The Exors of See No. 8	House		Culliters				5	0	0	4	0	0

	nent Poor							imate xtent	ed	Gross va	annı alue	ıal		eable lue	
No. of assessment		Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
36a <sup>9</sup>	<del>29</del>	Townsend Charles	Hyde Thos G See No 34	Land		Broadheath	7	θ	θ	<del>25</del>	θ	θ	22	10	θ
37	30	Palmer Mrs.	Hyde Thos G	Land		Broadheath	5	2	0	15	0	0	13	10	0
38	31	<del>Holtham H. W</del> Stallard J	Holtham H. W Corn Market Worc:	Land		Ashfields	1	3	0	4	5	0	3	15	0
39 <sup>10</sup>	32	Farmer Caroline	Harrison W H 100 Masbro Rd West Kensington Park	House		Peachley				32	0	0	25	10	0
39	a	Farmer Caroline	Harrison W H 100 Masbro Rd West Kensington Park	Land		Peachley	45	0	0	70	0	0	63	0	0
40	33	Williams Fras. J	Williams Fras. J	Land		Hallow	1	0	0	3	0	0	2	15	0
41	34	Williams Fras. J	Williams Fras. J	Land		Hallow	2	0	0	7	0	0	6	5	0
4211	35	Horne Joseph	Lowick N. L. Mrs Southfield Rd Westbury on Trym	Land		Moseley	4	0	0	6	0	0	5	10	0
43	36	Stallard Chas Richd	Lowick N. L. Mrs Southfield Rd Westbury on Trym	Land		Moseley	1	2	0	2	0	0	1	15	0
44	37	Thorpe Andrew	Thorpe Andrew Jessamine, Hallow, Wor:	Land		Hallow	4	1	0	17	0	0	15	5	0
45	38	Thorpe Andrew	Thorpe Andrew Jessamine, Hallow, Wor:	Land		Hallow	2	1	0	8	0	0	7	5	0

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>9</sup> Note added: See No. 777.
 <sup>10</sup> In 1911, William Hurle Harrison, Barrister-at-Law lived at Sinclair House, 100 Masbro Road, West Kensington Park. TNA: RG14/263.
 <sup>11</sup> Acreage originally given as 3a 3r, then replaced as above.

								imato xtent		Gross va	annu alue	ıal		eable lue	
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
46	39	Nind John	Nind <del>John</del> Lilian Rosa May Lynwood, Station Rd Old Colwyn.	Land		Hallow	4	0	0	7	0	0	6	5	0
47	40	Wheeler John	Lord's Exors (per Parker J H as agent for & on behalf of Sir Hy Foley Grey Bt & Chas Hy Leigh as Trees for the family of the late Jno. Pickup Lord)	Buildings		Hallow				2	10	0	2	0	0
47 <sup>12</sup>	a	Wheeler John	Lord's Exors (per Parker J H as agent for & on behalf of Sir Hy Foley Grey Bt & Chas Hy Leigh as Trees for the family of the late Jno. Pickup Lord)	Land		Hallow	51	1	0	69	5	0	62	10	0
48	41	Smith Herbert	Lord's Exors (per Parker J H as agent for & on behalf of Sir Hy Foley Grey Bt & Chas Hy Leigh as Trees for the family of the late Jno. Pickup Lord)	House		Peachley				48	0	0	38	10	0
48	a	Smith Herbert	Lord's Exors (per Parker J H as agent for & on behalf of Sir Hy Foley Grey Bt & Chas Hy Leigh as Trees for the	Land		Peachley	91	2	0	52	5	0	47	0	0

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>12</sup> Original values written and then crossed through were: Acreage, 51a 2r; Gross Annual Value £70 10s 0d; Rateable Value £65 10s 0d. Notes added: & see pt No. 556; P. R. 18/10/09.

								imate xtent		Gross va	annı lue	ıal		eable lue	
assessment Poo	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
			family of the late Jno. Pickup Lord)												
48						121	95	1	0	68	0	0	61	5	0
49	b	Smith Herbert	Lord's Exors (per Parker J H as agent for & on behalf of Sir Hy Foley Grey Bt & Chas Hy Leigh as Trees for the family of the late Jno. Pickup Lord)	Sporting Rights		Peachley				14	10	0	13	15	0
49				5 Cottages		522/6				26	0	0			
50	с	Smith Herbert	Britten Admiral, The Exors of See No. 8	Land		Peachley	7	0	0	8	5	0	7	15	0
51	42	Palmer Mrs	Lords Exors See No 47	House		Peachley				32	0	0	25	10	0
51	a	Smith Herbert	Lords Exors See No 47	Land		Peachley	95	1	0	68	0	0	61	5	0
52	43	Parish Council	Lords Exors See No 47	Land		Peachley	8	0	0	17	0	0	15	5	0
53	44	Leeds John	Leeds John	House		Shoulton				40	0	0	32	0	0
53	а	Leeds John	Leeds John	Land		Shoulton	159	3	0	120	0	0	108	0	0
53				4 cottages		389/62				20	0	0	15	0	0
54	45	Wheeler John	Lee-Williams Mrs Alice G The Knoll, Tuffley, Gloucester (Tenant for life) per G. F. S. Brown Solr Foregate St Wor: her Agent)	House		Heath Farm				40	0	0	32	0	0

								imate xtent	ed	Gross va	annu alue	ıal		eable lue	!
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
54	a	Wheeler John	Lee-Williams Mrs Alice G The Knoll, Tuffley, Gloucester (Tenant for life) per G. F. S. Brown Solr Foregate St Wor: her Agent)	Land		Heath Farm	100	1	0	102	10	0	92	5	0
55	b	Wheeler John	Lee-Williams Mrs Alice G The Knoll, Tuffley, Gloucester (Tenant for life) per G. F. S. Brown Solr Foregate St Wor: her Agent)	Sporting Rights		Heath Farm				10	0	0	9	15	0
56	46	Lee-Williams Mrs. A. G.	Lee-Williams Mrs Alice G The Knoll, Tuffley, Gloucester (Tenant for life) per G. F. S. Brown Solr Foregate St Wor: her Agent)	Land		Hallow	3	0	0	4	10	0	4	0	0
57	47	Lee-Williams Mrs. A. G.	Lee-Williams Mrs Alice G The Knoll, Tuffley, Gloucester (Tenant for life) per G. F. S. Brown Solr Foregate St Wor: her Agent)	Land		Hallow	5	3	0	10	0	0	9	0	0
58	48	Lee-Williams Mrs. A. G.	Lee-Williams Mrs Alice G The Knoll, Tuffley, Gloucester (Tenant for life) per G. F. S. Brown Solr Foregate St Wor: her Agent)	Land		Hallow	6	2	0	16	0	0	14	10	0
59	49	Armstrong James Jenkins J J	Lee-Williams Mrs Alice G The Knoll, Tuffley, Gloucester (Tenant for	House		Green Hill Farm				48	0	0	38	10	0

							extent value v				eable due	!			
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	Α	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
			life) per G. F. S. Brown Solr Foregate St Wor: her Agent)												
59		Armstrong James Jenkins J J	Lee-Williams Mrs Alice G The Knoll, Tuffley, Gloucester (Tenant for life) per G. F. S. Brown Solr Foregate St Wor: her Agent)	Land		Green Hill Farm	136	3	0	146	10	0	131	15	0
59				2 cottages		363/4				11	0	0	8	10	0
60	50	Meredith James	Meredith Jas The Knoll, Broadheath, Wor:	Land		Broadheath	18	2	0	32	15	0	28	15	0
61	51	Smith Herbert	Key Emily (Mrs) Peachley, Lower Broadheath, Wor:	Land		Broadheath	3	0	0	9	0	0	8	0	0
62	52	Best Exors	Best's Exors	Land		Broadheath	3	2	0	6	0	0	5	10	0
63	a	Best Exors	Best's Exors	Cottage		Broadheath		1	0	6	0	0	4	10	0
64	b	Best Exors	Best's Exors	Cottage		Broadheath		1	0	6	0	0	4	10	0
65	53	Pratt Henry	Pratt Henry	Land		Hallow		2	0	1	10	0	1	5	0
66	54	Pratt Henry	Pratt Henry	Land		Hallow		1	0	1	0	0	1	0	0
67	55	Bartleet Revd H	Bartleet Revd H	Vicarage		Hallow				58	0	0	46	10	0
68	55a	Bartleet Revd H	Bartleet Revd H	Glebe (Allotment)		Hallow	13	2	0	7	17	0	7	0	0
69	56	Townsend Chas.	Bartleet Revd H	Glebe		Broadheath	1	2	0	4	0	0	3	10	0

		C Occupier Owner and residence Description No Situat			imato xtent		Gross va	annı lue	ıal		eable lue				
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
70	57	Rowley George	Bartleet Revd H	Glebe		Hallow	3	2	0	8	10	0	7	15	0
71	58	Lock Henry	Bartleet Revd H	Glebe		Hallow	3	2	0	8	0	0	7	5	0
72	59	Rouse James	Rouse James Moseley Rd, nr Wor:	Cottage		Hallow				5	0	0	4	0	0
72	а	Rouse James	Rouse James Moseley Rd, nr Wor:	Land		Hallow		2	0	1	0	0	1	0	0
73	60	<del>Smith Richard</del> Wilson Frank	Rowland W. E.	House		Shoulton				32	0	0	25	10	0
73	а	<del>Smith Richard</del> Wilson Frank	Rowland W. E.	Land		Shoulton	124	0	0	120	0	0	108	0	0
74	61	Wainwright	Eccl Commrs	Land		Campfields	4	2	0	10	0	0	9	0	0
75	62	Harding	Maylett Charles Rose Cottage, Broadheath, Wor:	Cottage		Broadheath				5	0	0	4	0	0
75	а	Harding	Maylett Charles Rose Cottage, Broadheath, Wor:	Garden		Broadheath		3	0	1	0	0	1	0	0
76	63	Bromage Saml.	Bromage Saml.	Cottage		Broadheath				8	0	0	6	10	0
76	a	Bromage Saml.	Bromage Saml.	Garden		Broadheath	1	0	0	2	5	0	2	0	0
77 <sup>13</sup>	64	Gregory Thos & Sons	Bower Miss Elizth. per P. R. Thomson 74 Newport Rd B'ham	Land		Broadheath	1	2	0	4	10	0	4	0	0
78	65	Fortey John	Holland Walt Pritchard T deced (per Jas Coleman, Corn Market Wor:)	Land		Broadheath	1	2	0	8	0	0	7	5	0

<sup>13</sup> Note added: See No. 320.

								imato xtent				ıal		eable lue	
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	Α	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
79	66	Harber Francis	Harber Fras.	House		Lovington				32	0	0	25	10	0
79	66a	Harber Francis	Harber Fras.	Land		Lovington	32	3	0	78	10	0	70	15	0
80	67	<del>Smith Mrs</del> . Young E	<del>Smith Mrs.</del> Mrs. C. W. Lea	Land		Hallow	2	0	0	7	0	0	6	5	0
81	68	Lock B. W	School Trust per Rev Bartlett	Land		Hallow	2	0	0	6	0	0	5	10	0
82	69	Williams Fras.	School Trust	Land		Hallow	2	0	0	6	0	0	5	10	0
83	70	Townsend Chas. & Others	School Trust	Land		Broadheath	14	2	0	28	0	0	25	5	0
84	71	Baldwin J.	Charity Trust St. Johns Feoffees Buck & Son	Land		Broadheath	3	0	0	8	0	0	7	5	0
85	a	Cornwell J	Ideson Willm 14 Bridgefield St. Hapton, Nr Burnley, Lancs	Land		Broadheath	1	3	0	4	0	0	3	10	0
86	72	Maylett Chas.	Maylett Chas.	Land		Broadheath		2	0	1	10	0	1	5	0
87	73	Margetts Leonard	Smith Fredk. Hallow, Wor:	Land		Hallow	1	1	0	7	0	0	6	5	0
88	74	Spencer Wm.	Smith Fredk. Hallow, Wor:	House & Orchard		Hallow				32	0	0	25	10	0
89	а	Williams Fras.	Smith Fredk. Hallow, Wor:	Land		Hallow	11	0	0	18	0	0	16	5	0
89				Land		44/6	14	3	0	34	5	0	30	10	0
90	75	Fortey John	Messrs G I R. Hill, Solrs. Wor: as agents for Warnby, Revd C. C Doriston, Surrey Rd, Bournemouth	Land		Broadheath	1	0	0	4	2	0	3	15	0

								imato xtent		Gross va	annı alue	ıal		eable lue	
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
91	76	Thorpe Joseph	Thorpe Joseph	Land		Hallow		3	0	3	2	6	2	15	0
92	77	Thorpe Joseph	Thorpe Joseph	Land		Hallow	4	2	0	10	0	0	9	0	0
93	78	Young George	Martley R. D. C. per A. W. Knott	Land		Hallow	2	1	0	5	0	0	4	10	0
94	79	Young George	Marindin Major Arthur Hy Alvara, Alverstoke, Hants	Cottage		Hallow				18	0	0	14	10	0
94	a	Young George	Marindin Major Arthur Hy Alvara, Alverstoke, Hants	Land		Hallow	7	1	0	14	0	0	12	10	0
95	80	Hooper Henry	Woodward H	House		Green St Farm				36	0	0	28	15	0
95	a	Hooper Henry	Woodward H	Land		Green St Farm	159	3	0	132	0	0	118	15	0
			??? Whitehall	2 Cottages		429/30				10	0	0	7	10	0
96	81	Pritchard's Exors	Pritchard's Exors (per Jas Coleman for self & Do. Exors)	Land		Broadheath		1	0	3	2	6	2	15	0
97	82	Jacomb Wm. Horace	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	House		Eastbury Manor				56	0	0	44	15	0
97 <sup>14</sup>	a	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Land		Eastbury Manor	123	1	0	201	0	0	180	15	0
98	83	Herbert James	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	House		Little Eastbury				24	0	0	19	15	0
98	a	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Land		Little Eastbury	11	2	0	27	0	0	24	5	0

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>14</sup> Notes added below: No 671/3 Land & 2 Cotts Gross Annual Value £35, Rateable Value £33 5s 0d; 868 Gross Annual Value £16, Rateable Value £13 10s 0d.

								imate xtent		Gross va	annı alue	ıal		eable lue	
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
99	84	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Land		Hallow	2	1	0	6	0	0	5	10	0
100	a	Walter Andrew	Perry J. G. Henwick House, Wor:	Land		Henwick	2	0	0	4	10	0	4	0	0
101	85	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	House & Land		Parkfield	134	0	0	585	5	0	512	5	0
101		Wheeler Jno.	1	Land											
102	a	J Millward	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Cottage		Nr Lodge South Rd:				10	0	0	8	10	0
103	86	Hurlstone Wm.	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	House		Parkfields Gardens	1	2	0	30	0	0	25	10	0
104	87	Harris Alfred	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Cottage		Hallow Rd		1	0	10	0	0	8	10	0
105	88	Jones Edward	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Cottage		Hallow Rd		1	0	10	0	0	8	10	0
106	89	Wilesmith	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Cottage		Parkfield Lane		1	0	25	0	0	21	5	0
107	90	Winterton Abrm.	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Cottage	3	Parkfield Lane				10	0	0	8	10	0
108	91	Duggan Saml.	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Cottage	4	Parkfield Lane				14	0	0	12	0	0
109	a	Duggan Saml.	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Workshop		Parkfield Lane				4	0	0	3	0	0
110	92	Rea Walter	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Cottage		Parkfield Lane				10	0	0	8	10	0
111	93	Grosvenor Chas.	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Cottage	6					10	0	0	8	10	0
112	94	Stone Giles	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Cottage	7		1			10	0	0	8	10	0
113	95	Saunders Wm.	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Cottage	1	Parkfield Lane				6	10	0	5	0	0

					imate xtent		Gross va	annı alue	ıal		eable lue				
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	Α	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
114	96	Batchelor Geo:	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Cottage	6	Parkfield Lane				7	10	0	5	15	0
115	97	Bates Mrs.	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Cottage	7	Parkfield Lane				4	0	0	3	0	0
116	98	Lancaster	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Cottage	8	Parkfield Lane				5	0	0	3	15	0
117	99	Allen Thos.	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Cottage	9	Parkfield Lane				8	0	0	6	0	0
118	100	Tyler George	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Cottage	10	Parkfield Lane				8	0	0	6	0	0
119	101	Oakey Jas	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Cottage	11	Parkfield Lane				8	0	0	6	0	0
120	102	George	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Cottage	12	Parkfield Lane				8	0	0	6	0	0
121	103	Lord Arthur E	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	House & Land		The Mount	9	0	0	120	0	0	102	0	0
121						No 237 Cotte				10	0	0	8	10	0
122	104	Bowkett Chas.	Bayley Leonard Cox The Nutshell, Whitbourne, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow				10	0	0	8	10	0
123	105	Crowe	Bayley Leonard Cox The Nutshell, Whitbourne, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow				10	0	0	8	10	0
124	106	Robinson	Bayley Leonard Cox The Nutshell, Whitbourne, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow				10	0	0	8	10	0
125	107	Scarlett Thos. E	Bayley Leonard Cox The Nutshell, Whitbourne, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow				10	0	0	8	10	0
126	108	Medlicott Thos.	Medlicott Thos. Elm Cott:, Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow				11	0	0	9	10	0

	f No. of Occupier Owner and residence Description							imato xtent		Gross va	annı due	ıal		eable due	
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	Α	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
126						Land No 14				2	0	0	1	15	0
127	109	Sharp Wm.	Sharp Wm.	Cottage		Hallow				8	0	0	6	0	0
128	110	Richardson Geo	Wilding Wm. Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow		1	0	11	0	0	9	10	0
129	111	Watkins Mrs. Elizth	Watkins Mrs. Wilding Wm. Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow		2	0	10	0	0	8	10	0
130	112	Rouse Wm.	Brooks Mrs. Harriett Heath Cott:, Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		The Green				5	0	0	3	15	0
131	113	Potter Wm.	Brooks Mrs. Harriett Heath Cott:, Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		The Green				5	0	0	3	15	0
132	114	Brooks Mrs.	Brooks Mrs. Harriett	Heath Cottage		Hallow				9	0	0	7	15	0
133	115	Ashmoor	Young Geo: Hallow Green, Wor:	Cottage		The Green				5	0	0	3	15	0
134	116	Allen Willm.	Lambert & Rogers	Mill & Bakeh'se		Hallow Mill				13	0	0	9	15	0
135	117	Packwood John	Reynolds J. S. 90 Coffee Tavern Broad St Wor:	Cottage		Moseley				5	0	0	3	15	0
136	118	Freeman Thos.	Griffin Thos. Henry 42 Hallow Hill, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow				5	0	0	3	15	0
137	119	Stokes George	Griffin Thos. Henry 42 Hallow Hill, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow				5	0	0	3	15	0
138	120	Mann Thos.	Griffin Thos. Henry 42 Hallow Hill, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow				5	0	0	3	15	0
139	121	Freeman Jno.	Griffin Thos. Henry 42 Hallow Hill, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow				5	0	0	3	15	0
140	123	Richardson Walter	Eccles Commissioners	Cottage		Hallow				6	0	0	4	10	0

	No. of No. of Occ							imato xtent		Gross va	annu alue	ıal		eable lue	
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
141	124	Chance Thos.	Eccles Commissioners	Cottage		Hallow				6	0	0	4	10	0
142	125	Wilde Chas.	Eccles Commissioners	Cottage		Hallow				6	0	0	4	10	0
143	126	Hewitt Earle	Eccles Commissioners	Cottage		Hallow				6	0	0	4	10	0
144	127	Commissioners	Eccles Commissioners	Tithe R. C		Hallow				186	2	7	141	12	1
145	128	Wood Francis J. A	Earl Beauchamp	Land		The Park		2	0	2	0	0	2	0	0
145						No 12 land	27	0	0	54	0	0	48	10	0
146	129	Wood Francis J. A	Earl Beauchamp	House		The Park	5	2	0	220	0	0	187	0	0
147	130	Perkins Alfred	Earl Beauchamp	Cottage		Church Lane				6	0	0	4	10	0
148	131	Dutson Thos.	Earl Beauchamp	Cottage		Church Lane				6	0	0	4	10	0
149	132		Earl Beauchamp	Cottage		Hallow				5	0	0	3	15	0
150	133	Morgan	Earl Beauchamp	Cottage		Hallow				5	0	0	3	15	0
151	134	Blissett Frank	Bourne Mrs. Mary Jubilee Place, Poolbrook, Malvern.	Cottage		Hallow				6	0	0	4	10	0
152	135	Mason James	Bourne Mrs. Mary Jubilee Place, Poolbrook, Malvern.	Cottage		Hallow				6	0	0	4	10	0
153	136	Pugh Charles	Bourne Saml. Rose Cott: Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow				6	0	0	4	10	0
154	137	Hancox Chas.	Bourne Saml. Rose Cott: Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow				6	0	0	4	10	0

								imato xtent		Gross va	annu lue	ıal		eable alue	
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
155	138	Finch Thos.	Bourne Saml. Rose Cott: Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow				6	0	0	4	10	0
156	139	Herman John Checketts H	Bourne Saml. Rose Cott: Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow				6	0	0	4	10	0
157	140	Griffiths Geo	Bourne Saml. Rose Cott: Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow				6	0	0	4	10	0
158	141	<del>Manns</del> Barton Thos.	Hicks Caleb 14 Bridge St, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow				6	0	0	4	10	0
159	142	Mann Willm.	Hicks Caleb 14 Bridge St, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow				6	0	0	4	10	0
160	а	Preece Harvey Chas.	Preece Harvey C Camp Lane, Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow				10	0	0	8	10	0
161	143	Rowberry	Quarrell Thos Chance Upper Wick, Worcester	Cottage		Moseley				5	0	0	3	15	0
162 <sup>15</sup>	144	South Mrs.	Quarrell Thos Chance Upper Wick, Worcester	Cottage		Moseley				2	10	0			
163	145	Freeman Mrs.	Quarrell Thos Chance Upper Wick, Worcester	Cottage		Moseley				2	10	0			
164	a	Smith Henry	Quarrell Thos Chance Upper Wick, Worcester	Cottage		Moseley				5	0	0	3	15	0
165	146	Pitt James	Pitt James Yew Tree Villas, Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow		2	0	6	0	0	4	10	0
166	147	Adams Mrs.	Pitt James Yew Tree Villas, Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow		2	0	6	0	0	4	10	0
167	148	Danter Henry	Rea Walter Parkfield Lane, Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		Church Lane				5	0	0	3	15	0
168	149	Smith Mrs.	Rea Walter Parkfield Lane, Hallow, Wor:	Cottage						2	10	0	2	0	0
169	150	Ryland Fredk.	Rea Walter Parkfield Lane, Hallow, Wor:	Cottage						7	0	0	5	5	0

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>15</sup> This entry and the following entry were grouped together with curly brackets and a combined value given for the Rateable Value of £3 15s 0d.

		o of Occupier Owner and residence Description No Si						timato xtent		Gross va	annu alue	ıal		eable lue	
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
170	151	Dancombe Ingram Miss A L B	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Cottage		The Green				28	0	0	23	15	0
171	152	Clay John	Everton Miss M. W 58 Bromyard Rd, Wor:	Cottage		The Green				12	0	0	10	5	0
172	153	Gillett Edward	Doughty Mrs. Harriett Hallow Green, Wor:	Cottage		The Green				7	10	0	5	15	0
173	154	Cotton Rebecca	Doughty Mrs. Harriett Hallow Green, Wor:	Cottage		The Green				7	10	0	5	15	0
174	155	Clay Ernest	Wilding Wm. Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		The Green				7	10	0	5	15	0
175	156	Taylor Walter	Wilding Wm. Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		The Green				7	10	0	5	15	0
176	157	Collins John	Tolley Forty Miss (per W Wilding, Hallow per self & Co Exors)	Cottage		The Green				7	10	0	5	15	0
177	158	Winnall Chas.	Tolley Forty Miss (per W Wilding, Hallow per self & Co Exors)	Cottage		The Green				7	10	0	5	15	0
178	159	Wilding Wm.	Tolley Forty Miss (per W Wilding, Hallow per self & Co Exors)	House		The Green				18	0	0	15	5	0
179	160	Smith Wm.	Tolley Forty Miss (per W Wilding, Hallow per self & Co Exors)	Cottage		Hallow				5	0	0	3	15	0
180	161	Blissett John	Tolley Forty Miss (per W Wilding, Hallow per self & Co Exors)	Cottage		Hallow				5	0	0	3	15	0
181	162	Williams Thos.	Tolley Forty Miss (per W Wilding, Hallow per self & Co Exors)	Cottage		Hallow				5	0	0	3	15	0
182	163	Fortey Mrs. Ellen	Fortey Mrs. E Windsor Cott, Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow				10	0	0	8	10	0

							imato xtent		Gross va	annı alue	ıal		eable lue		
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	Α	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
183	164		Fortey Mrs. E Windsor Cott, Hallow, Wor:	Garden		Hallow		1	0	1	0	0	1	0	0
184	165	Bydawell Chas.	Fortey Mrs. E Windsor Cott, Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		Moseley Rd				6	0	0	4	10	0
185	166	Griffiths James	Fortey Mrs. E Windsor Cott, Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		Moseley Rd				б	0	0	4	10	0
186	167	Saunders Richd	Fortey Mrs. E Windsor Cott, Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		Moseley Rd				5	0	0	3	15	0
187	168	Goodwin Thos.	Fortey Mrs. E Windsor Cott, Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		Moseley Rd				5	0	0	3	15	0
188	169	Bourne Saml.	Bourne Saml. Rose Cott:, Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow		1	0	11	0	0	9	10	0
189	170	Mumford Joseph	Bourne Saml. Rose Cott:, Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow		1	0	7	10	0	5	15	0
190	171	Medlicot Chas.	Bourne Saml.	Cottage		Hallow				7	10	0	5	15	0
191	172	Taylor Thos.	Gardiner Wm. Headways Farm, Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		Shoulton				5	0	0	3	15	0
192	173	Britten Admiral	Britten Admiral The Exors of See no 8	Osier Bed		Shoulton Rd	4	0	0	8	0	0	7	10	0
193	174	Brooks Harry	Brooks Harry The Hollies, Hallow, Wor:	Osier Bed		Hallow	1	0	0	3	5	0	2	15	0
194	175	Tyler Alfred	Smith Fred Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow				6	0	0	3	15	0
195	176	Grubb Mrs.	James Thos. 8 Bank St, Wor:	Cottage		The Green				6	0	0	4	10	0
196	177	Withey Edwd	James Thos. 8 Bank St, Wor:	Cottage		The Green				5	0	0	3	15	0
197	178	Withey	James Thos. 8 Bank St, Wor:	Cottage		The Green				5	0	0	3	15	0
198	179	Groves Alfred	James Thos. 8 Bank St, Wor:	Cottage		The Green				5	0	0	3	15	0

								imato xtent		Gross va	ann lue	ual		eable due	
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
199	180	Hooper Thos. Hill	James Thos. 8 Bank St, Wor:	Cottage		The Green				4	0	0	3	0	0
200	181	Southall Thos.	James Thos. 8 Bank St, Wor:	Cottage		The Green				3	0	0	2	5	0
201	182	Wilson Emma	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Cottage		The Green				5	0	0	3	15	0
202	183	Doughty Mrs.	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Cottage		The Green				9	0	0	7	15	0
203	184	Holloway Wm.	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Cottage		The Green				9	0	0	7	15	0
204	185	Travell Chas. Clay	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Cottage		The Green				9	0	0	7	15	0
205	186		Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Green House		The Green				30	0	0	25	10	0
206	187	Working Men's Club	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Club		Hallow				5	0	0	3	15	0
207	188	Rowley George	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Cottage		Hallow				10	0	0	8	10	0
208	189	Margetts Thos.	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Cottage		The Green				10	0	0	8	10	0
209	189a	Tabberer Chas.	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Cottage		The Green				12	0	0	10	5	0
210	189b	Woodward	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Cottage		The Green				10	0	0	8	10	0
211	190	Capper <del>Willm</del> . Maria	Capper <del>Willm</del> . Maria	Cottage		Moseley Rd		1	0	6	0	0	4	10	0
212	191	Rowberry	Harber Francis Lovington, Broadheath, Wor:	Cottage		Moseley Rd				5	0	0	3	15	0
213	192	Smith Arthur	Harber Francis Lovington, Broadheath, Wor:	Cottage		Moseley Rd				5	0	0	3	15	0

								imato xtent		Gross va	annu alue	ual		eable lue	
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
214	193	Allen Henry	Harber Francis Lovington, Broadheath, Wor:	Cottage		Moseley Rd				5	0	0	3	15	0
215	194	Horne	Harber Francis Lovington, Broadheath, Wor:	Cottage		Moseley Rd				5	0	0	3	15	0
216	195	Goodyear Thos.	Harber Francis Lovington, Broadheath, Wor:	Cottage		Broadheath				5	0	0	3	15	0
217	196	Fletcher Thos.	Fletcher Thos.	Cottage		Moseley				4	0	0	3	0	0
218	197	Harper Wm.	Harper Wm. Moseley Rd, Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		Moseley				8	0	0	6	0	0
219	198	Amphlett Jno.	Evans John Hughes Mrs Charlotte 35 Arlington Sq: London. N	Cottage		Moseley Rd				7	0	0	5	5	0
220	199	Chester Jno. Wm.	Evans John Hughes Mrs Charlotte 35 Arlington Sq: London. N	Cottage		Moseley Rd				11	0	0	9	10	0
221	200	Stallard Richd	Stallard <del>Thos</del> . E.	Cottage		Moseley Rd				10	0	0	8	10	0
222	201	Hill	Armstrong Jas. Wm. Moseley Villa, Grimley, Wor:	Cottage		Moseley Rd		3	0	13	0	0	11	0	0
223	202	Collins Harry	Lawrence Mrs. 46 St Johns: Wor.	Cottage		Moseley Rd				3	0	0	2	5	0
224	203	Smith Mrs.	Lawrence Mrs. 46 St Johns: Wor.	Cottage		Moseley Rd				3	0	0	2	5	0

								imato xtent		Gross va	annu alue	ıal		eable due	
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
225 <sup>16</sup>	204	Smith John	Dadge Alma Mary Benjn Lock Ho: Upper Lode, Tewkesbury	Cottage		Hallow				5	0	0	3	15	0
226	205	Hill Charles	Dadge Alma Mary Benjn Lock Ho: Upper Lode, Tewkesbury	Cottage		Hallow				4	0	0	3	0	0
227	206	Amphlett Mrs. Mary	Robinson Stephens John 26 Malvern Rd Wor:	Cottage		Hallow				8	0	0	6	0	0
228	207	Nind John	Nind May Lynwood Station Road Old Colwyn	House		Hallow	1	3	0	35	0	0	29	15	0
229	208	Handley Wm.	Leeds John	Cottage		Shoulton				5	0	0	3	15	0
230	209	Jones Thomas	Leeds John	Cottage		Shoulton				5	0	0	3	15	0
231	210		Leeds John	Cottage						5	0	0	3	15	0
232	211		Leeds John	Cottage						5	0	0	3	15	0
23317	212		Lee Williams Alice G	Cottage		Camp Fields				5	10	0	4	5	0
234	213		Lee Williams Alice G	Cottage						5	10	0	4	5	0
235	214	Monahan	Rowland W. E.	Cottage						6	0	0	4	10	0
236	215	Brooks Henry	Brooks Henry The Hollies, Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow				14	0	0	12	0	0

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>16</sup> Both Benjamin Dadge (Lock Keeper) and Alma Mary Dadge (his wife) were listed in the 1911 Census as living at Lock House, Upper Lode, Tewkesbury (TNA: RG14/15580): both names will appear in Appendix 2.
 <sup>17</sup> Note added: See No 54.

								imato xtent		Gross va	ann lue	ual		eable lue	
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	Α	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
237	216	Mann Herbert	Broughton Richd 1 Comer Gardens, Wor:	Cottage						5	0	0	3	15	0
238	217	Sampson Chas.	Broughton Richd 1 Comer Gardens, Wor:	Cottage						5	0	0	3	15	0
239	218	Phillips Albert	Broughton Richd 1 Comer Gardens, Wor:	Cottage						5	0	0	3	15	0
240	219	Gabb Mrs. Mary G	Gabb Mrs. M. G	House		Melbourne Villa	1	0	0	50	0	0	42	10	0
241	220	Palmer Mrs. Emma	Palmer Mrs. E	Cottage		Moseley Turning				6	0	0	4	10	0
242	221	Palmer Alfred	Palmer Mrs. E	Cottage						5	0	0	3	15	0
243	222	Pratt Henry S.	Pratt Henry S	House		Royal Oak		1	0	20	0	0	17	0	0
244	223	Bartleet Revd H	Bartleet Revd H	Tithe R. C		Hallow				223	0	0	184	0	0
245	224	Sanders Mrs.	Bartleet Revd H	Cottage		Church Lane				5	0	0	3	15	0
246	225	Dovey	Bartleet Revd H	Cottage		Church Lane				5	0	0	3	15	0
247	226	Hill George	Prosser Wheeler Thos. 70 London Rd, Wor:	Cottage		Moseley Turning				5	0	0	3	15	0
248	227	Hill Alfred	Prosser Wheeler Thos. 70 London Rd, Wor:	Cottage		Moseley Turning				5	0	0	3	15	0
249	228	Hooper Mrs.	Rea Robert Carlton c/o	Cottage		Moseley Turning				6	0	0	4	10	0
250	229	Adams Chas.	Rose Exors of John Rea Carlton 34 Foregate St Wor (Carlton Rea 34 Foregate St)	Cottage		Hallow				10	0	0	8	10	0

								imato xtent		Gross va	annu lue	ıal		eable lue	
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	Α	R	Р	£	S	d	£	s	d
251	230	Aspey Alfred	Smith Mrs. Susannah Moseley Rd, Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow		1	0	6	0	0	4	10	0
252	231	Pugh James	Smith Mrs. Susannah Moseley Rd, Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow		1	0	6	0	0	4	10	0
253	232	Sampson George	Smith Mrs. Susannah Moseley Rd, Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow		1	0	6	0	0	4	10	0
254	233	Cornes George	Smith Mrs. Susannah Moseley Rd, Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow		1	0	6	0	0	4	10	0
255	234	Perkins	Ranford Henry 21 Cannon St, Red Hill, Wor:	Cottage		Church Lane				6	0	0	4	10	0
256	235	Whitty Mrs.	Ranford Henry 21 Cannon St, Red Hill, Wor:	Cottage		Church Lane				5	0	0	3	15	0
257	236	Perkins Annie	Ranford Henry 21 Cannon St, Red Hill, Wor:	Cottage		Church Lane				5	0	0	3	15	0
258	237	W'ster Co'y Council per Moreton Arthur	School Trust Co. Council C C	House		Hallow	1	0	0	15	0	0	12	15	0
259	238	Thorpe Andrew	Thorpe Andrew Jessamine, Hallow, Wor:	House		Hallow				15	0	0	12	15	0
260	239	Green George	Thorpe Joseph	Cottage		Hallow				5	0	0	3	15	0
261	240	Checketts Emma	Thorpe Joseph			Hallow				5	0	0	3	15	0
262	241	Blissett Alfred	Thorpe Joseph			Hallow				5	0	0	3	15	0

								imato xtent		Gross va	annu alue	ıal		eable lue	
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
263	242	Thorpe Joseph	Thorpe Joseph	House		Hallow	2	1	0	40	0	0	34	0	0
264	243	Margetts Leonard	Smith Fredk. Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow				7	0	0	5	5	0
265	244	Adams James	Smith Fredk. Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow				7	0	0	5	5	0
266	245	Molineaux Jno.	Smith Fredk. Hallow, Wor:	Shop		Hallow				3	0	0	2	5	0
267	246	Lock Henry	Lock Henry	Crown Inn		Hallow	1	1	0	55	0	0	46	15	0
26818	247	Severn Towing Path Company	Severn Towing Path Company per A J Butler Esq 87 Darlington St Wolverhampton	Severn Side		Severn Side				7	0	0	6	15	0
269	248	McAdam Robert	Tearne John Chas. Tearne Ann & Tearne Ellen Agnes per J C Tearne Tenbury	Ashbed		Moseley		3	0	0	15	0	0	13	0
270	249	Pratt Chas.	Pratt Chas.	Cottage		Hallow				5	0	0	3	15	0
271	250	Finch Willm.	Smith Mrs. Mary 5 Brook St. Wor:	Cottage		Hallow		3	0	20	0	0	17	0	0
272	251	Etheridge Willm.	Smith Mrs. Mary 5 Brook St. Wor:	Cottage		Hallow				8	0	0	6	0	0
273	252	Lodge Henry	Smith Mrs. Mary 5 Brook St. Wor:	Cottage		Hallow				8	0	0	6	0	0
274	253	Griffiths Willm.	Ryland Fred Hy Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		Hallow				10	0	0	8	10	0
275	254	Mason Mrs.	Dadge Benjn Lock Ho: Upper Lode, Tewkesbury	Cottage		Hallow				6	0	0	4	10	0

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>18</sup> Note added: NOT per Mr. Jno. Bradley.

								imato xtent		Gross va	annı alue	ıal		eable lue	
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	Α	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
276	254a	Gibbons Henry	Dadge Benjn Lock Ho: Upper Lode, Tewkesbury	Cottage		Hallow				6	0	0	4	10	0
277	255	Collins John Hy	Hooper Thos Geo: 216 Winson Green Rd, B'ham	Cottage		Hallow				6	0	0	4	10	0
278	255a	Hallam	Hooper Thos Geo: 216 Winson Green Rd, B'ham	Cottage		Hallow				6	0	0	4	10	0
279	256	Williams Fras. J	Williams Fras. J	House		Spring Villa	1	0	0	29	10	0	25	0	0
280	257	Saunderson	Williams Fras. J	House		Hallow	1	0	0	20	0	0	17	0	0
281	258	Griffiths Mrs.	Pratt Henry Saml. Royal Oak, Hallow.	Cottage		Hallow				5	10	0	4	5	0
282	259	Adams George	Pratt Henry Saml. Royal Oak, Hallow.	Cottage		Hallow				5	10	0	4	5	0
283	260		Bridges S Warwick Ho: Acocks Green B'ham	Cottage		Moseley				5	0	0	3	15	0
284	261	Finch Leonard	Bridges S Warwick Ho: Acocks Green B'ham	Cottage		Hallow				6	0	0	4	10	0
285	262	Brooks Mrs.	Bridges S Warwick Ho: Acocks Green B'ham	Cottage		Hallow				5	0	0	3	15	0
286	263	Wheatley Philip	Bridges S Warwick Ho: Acocks Green B'ham	Cottage		Hallow				5	0	0	3	15	0
287	264	Minett Thos.	Bridges S Warwick Ho: Acocks Green B'ham	Cottage		Hallow				5	0	0	3	15	0
288	265	Rowe Maria	Wormington Thos. A., R. F. D. N. I. Box 271 San Diego California U. S. A.	Cottage		Hallow				6	0	0	4	10	0
289	266	Sampson Arthur	Wormington Thos. A., R. F. D. N. I. Box 271 San Diego California U. S. A.	Cottage		Hallow				6	0	0	4	10	0

								imato xtent		Gross va	ann lue	ıal		eable due	
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
290	267	Roberts James	Wormington Thos.	Cottage		Hallow				6	0	0	4	10	0
291	268	Withey Sarah	Wormington Thos.	Cottage		Hallow				6	0	0	4	10	0
292	269	Morgan Mrs.	Wormington Thos.	Cottage		Hallow				3	0	0	2	5	0
293	270	Moulton John	Wormington Thos.	Cottage		Hallow				5	10	0	4	5	0
294	271	Pugh James	Wormington Thos.	Cottage		Hallow				5	10	0	4	5	0
295	272	Harding Anson	Wormington Thos.	Cottage		Hallow				5	10	0	4	5	0
296	273	Bibb William	Wormington Thos.	Cottage		Hallow				5	10	0	4	5	0
297	274	Greg Francis	Wormington Thos.	Cottage		Hallow				6	0	0	4	10	0
298	275	Lock Benjn. Wm. Etheridge H. C.	Lock B. W Elmley Cott. Hallow, Wor:	Cottage		Elmley Cottage				18	0	0	15	5	0
299 <sup>19</sup>	276		Woodward Henry	Cottage		Shoulton				5	0	0	3	15	0
300	277	Jenkins	Woodward Henry	Cottage		Shoulton				5	0	0	3	15	0
301	278	Jones Francis	Woodward Henry	Cottage		Shoulton		1	0	6	5	0	4	15	0
302	279	Rudge Francis	Woodward Henry	Cottage		Shoulton		1	0	6	5	0	4	15	0
303	280	Rudge Francis	Woodward Henry	Cottage		Shoulton		1	0	6	5	0	4	15	0
304	281	Rudge Francis	Woodward Henry	Cottage		Shoulton		1	0	6	5	0	4	15	0

<sup>19</sup> Note added: See No 96.

								imato xtent		Gross va	annu alue	ıal		eable due	
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
305	282	Britten Admiral	Britten Admiral The Exors of See No 8	Tithe R. C.		Peachley				11	0	2	9	0	0
306	283	Britten Admiral	Britten Admiral The Exors of See No 8	Coppice		Woodhall	7	0	0	5	0	0	4	15	0
307	284	Britten Admiral	Britten Admiral The Exors of See No 8	Cottage		Peachley				5	0	0	3	15	0
308	285	Sprague Mrs.	Britten Admiral The Exors of See No 8	Cottage		Peachley				5	0	0	3	15	0
309	286	Smith Joseph	Britten Admiral The Exors of See No 8	Cottage		Peachley				5	0	0	3	15	0
310	287	Sprague John	Britten Admiral The Exors of See No 8	Cottage		Peachley				5	0	0	3	15	0
311	288	Gardiner	Britten Admiral The Exors of See No 8	Cottage		Peachley				5	0	0	3	15	0
312	289	Taylor	Britten Admiral The Exors of See No 8	Cottage		Kenswick		1	0	5	0	0	3	15	0
313	290	Robbins	Britten Admiral The Exors of See No 8	Cottage		Kenswick		1	0	5	0	0	3	15	0
314	290a	Griffiths Chas.	Britten Admiral The Exors of See No 8	Cottage		Kenswick				5	10	0	4	5	0
315	290b	Wilson Willm.	Britten Admiral The Exors of See No 8	Cottage		Kenswick				5	10	0	4	5	0
316	291	Soley James	Britten Admiral The Exors of See No 8	Cottage		Ashfields				7	0	0	5	5	0
317	292	Grandon Mr.	Meredith Jas. Broadheath, Wor:	Cottage		Broadheath				6	0	0	4	10	0
31820	293		Baldwyn Wm To Arthur Bamber Netherby	Cottage		Frenchland									

 $<sup>^{20}</sup>$  This entry and the following entry were grouped together with curly brackets and combined values given as follows: Acreage, 2 roods; Gross Annual Value, £20; Rateable Value, £17.

								timat extent		Gross va	annu alue	ual		eable lue	
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	Α	R	Р	£	S	d	£	s	d
			Leckhampton Cheltenham												
319	294		Baldwyn Wm To Arthur Bamber Netherby Leckhampton Cheltenham	Cottage		Frenchland									
320	295		Bowen Miss Elizth. per Priscilla Thomson 74 Newport Rd, B'ham	Cottage		Broadheath				5	0	0	3	15	0
321	296	Simmons Chas. Bradley Alfred	Bowen Miss Elizth. per Priscilla Thomson 74 Newport Rd, B'ham	Cottage		Broadheath				5	0	0	3	15	0
322	297	Williams Fras.	Bowen Miss Elizth. per Priscilla Thomson 74 Newport Rd, B'ham	Cottage		Broadheath				5	0	0	3	15	0
323	298	Winders Wm.	Bowen Miss Elizth. per Priscilla Thomson 74 Newport Rd, B'ham	Cottage		Broadheath				7	0	0	5	5	0
324	299	Lewis Walter	Bethell <del>Wm</del> . Richard Bricklayers Arms St Owen St Hereford	Cottage		Broadheath				6	0	0	4	10	0
325	300	Gwillam Mrs.	Bethell <del>Wm</del> . Richard Bricklayers Arms St Owen St Hereford	Cottage		Broadheath				6	0	0	4	10	0
326	301	Hill Alfred	Bethell <del>Wm</del> . Richard Bricklayers Arms St Owen St Hereford	Cottage		Broadheath				6	0	0	4	10	0
327	302	Wilkes	Bethell <del>Wm</del> . Richard Bricklayers Arms St Owen St Hereford	Cottage		Broadheath				6	0	0	4	10	0
328	303	Munn Jane	Bethell <del>Wm</del> . Richard Bricklayers Arms St Owen St Hereford	Cottage		Broadheath				6	0	0	4	10	0

								imat xtent		Gross va	annu alue	ual		eable lue	
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
329	304	Tyler Mrs.	Bethell <del>Wm</del> . Richard Bricklayers Arms St Owen St Hereford	Cottage		Broadheath				5	0	0	3	15	0
330	305	Shergold	Bethell Willm.	Cottage		Broadheath				5	0	0	3	15	0
331	306	Everton John	Bethell Willm.	Cottage		Broadheath				5	0	0	3	15	0
332	307	Cope Eliza	Cope Eliza	Cottage		Broadheath				10	0	0	8	10	0
333	308	Greenway Thos. Turner Fredk Bradley Alfd	Cope Eliza	Cottage		Broadheath				3	0	0	2	5	0
334	309	Pardoe George	Munckton Cope Eliza	Cottage		Broadheath		1	0	6	0	0	4	10	0
335	310	Hayward Richd	Munckton Thos. Somers Rd, Wor:	Cottage		Broadheath				5	0	0	3	15	0
336	311	Weaver Willm.	Chambers Mr Wm. 28 Chestnut St, Wor:	Cottage		Broadheath		1	0	7	10	0	5	15	0
337	312	Turner Jas.	Chambers Mr Wm. 28 Chestnut St, Wor:	Cottage		Broadheath		1	0	7	10	0	5	15	0
338	313	Chambers Geo: Gregory Jno.	Chambers Geo: Wm.	Land						1	0	0	1	0	0
339	314	Jones Saml. Allen	Lea Mrs Wheeley	Cottage		Eastbury				б	0	0	4	10	0
340	315	<del>Taylor Tom</del> Simmonds	Lea Mrs Wheeley	Cottage		Eastbury				6	0	0	4	10	0
341	316	Townshend Walter	Euston's Trust Castle George Standon Rd Standon Herts.	Cottage		Broadheath				5	0	0	3	15	0
342	317	Townshend Walter	Euston's Trust Castle George Standon Rd Standon Herts.	Cottage		Broadheath				5	0	0	3	15	0

								timato xtent		Gross va	annu alue	ual		eable lue	
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
343	318	Townshend Chas.	Worrall Leonard Chas: 77 Gatliff Buildings Pimlico. S. W.	Cottage		Broadheath				16	0	0	13	15	0
344	319	Wheatley Mrs.	Worrall Leonard Chas: 77 Gatliff Buildings Pimlico. S. W.	Cottage		Broadheath				6	0	0	4	10	0
345	320	<del>Moss Arthur</del> Young	Pritchard's Exors (per Joseph Coleman)	Cottage		Broadheath		2	0	8	0	0	6	0	0
346	321	Turner Fred	Pritchard's Exors (per Joseph Coleman)	Cottage		Broadheath				12	0	0	10	5	0
347	321a	Casidy	Pritchard's Exors (per Joseph Coleman)	Cottage		Broadheath				16	0	0	13	15	0
348	321b	Chambers Walter Greenway Miss A	Pritchard's Exors (per Joseph Coleman)	Cottage		Broadheath				16	0	0	13	15	0
349	322	Rawlins Albert Rogers J	Groves Mrs. Emma 180 Henwick Rd Wor:	Cottage		Broadheath		3	0	6	0	0	4	10	0
350	323	Everton Fredk.	Groves Mrs. Emma 180 Henwick Rd Wor:	Cottage		Broadheath				6	0	0	4	10	0
351	324	Lewis Wm.	Edwards Mrs. Mary Jury Lane, Martley, Wor:	Cottage		Broadheath		1	0	6	0	0	4	10	0
352	325	Bradley Jas	Edwards Mrs. Mary Jury Lane, Martley, Wor:	Cottage		Broadheath		1	0	6	0	0	4	10	0
353	326	Maylett Frank Bosley Mrs.	Maylett Margaret Cotheridge, nr Wor:	Cottage		Broadheath				5	0	0	3	15	0
354	327	Senter Willm.	Maylett Margaret Cotheridge, nr Wor:	Cottage		Broadheath				5	0	0	3	15	0
355	328	Griffiths Thos	Munn Richd Lower Broadheath, Wor:	Cottage		Broadheath				6	0	0	4	10	0
356	329	Cornwell J	Ideson Wm. 14 Bridgefield St, Hapton, Nr Burnley	Cottage		Broadheath				5	0	0	3	15	0

								imato xtent		Gross va	annı alue	ıal		eable due	
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
357	330	Cornwell J	Ideson Wm. 14 Bridgefield St, Hapton, Nr Burnley	Cottage		Broadheath				5	0	0	3	15	0
357		Cornwell J	Ideson Wm. 14 Bridgefield St, Hapton, Nr Burnley	& Land		192	1	3	0	4	0	0	3	10	0
358	331	Evans	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Cottage		Lovington				5	5	0	4	0	0
359	332		Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Cottage		Lovington				5	5	0	4	0	0
360	333	Rouse Saml Potter Joseph	Harber Francis Lovington, Broadheath, Wor:	Cottage		Lovington				5	5	0	4	0	0
361	334		Harber Francis Lovington, Broadheath, Wor:	Cottage		Lovington				5	5	0	4	0	0
362	335	Cook Thomas	Meredith Jas. Broadheath, Wor:	Cottage		Broadheath				10	0	0	8	10	0
363	336	Chambers Geo	Meredith Jas. Broadheath, Wor:	Cottage		Broadheath				6	0	0	4	10	0
364	337	Freeman Fredk.	Horton Thos. Richd 21 Stretton Rd, Much Wenlock	Cottage		Broadheath		1	0	6	0	0	4	10	0
365	338	Meredith Jas.	Jarman C Meredith Jas	House		Broadheath	2	0	0	30	0	0	25	10	0
366	339	Cocum Jas	Warnham Jarman C 76 Astwood Rd, Wor:	Cottage		Broadheath				5	0	0	3	15	0
367 <sup>21</sup>	340	Hughes Fred	Hughes Fred Worrall Leonard Chas	Cottage		Broadheath				6	0	0	4	10	0

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>21</sup> Note added: See No 343.

								imato xtent		Gross va	ann lue	ıal		eable due	;
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	Р	£	S	d	£	s	d
368	341	Lomsdale Mrs.	Charity Trust	Cottage		Broadheath				4	0	0	3	0	0
369	342	<del>Passey</del> Wall D L	Charity Trust	Cottage		Broadheath				4	0	0	3	0	0
370	343	Passey Wall D L	Charity Trust	Warehouse		Broadheath				4	0	0	3	0	0
371 <sup>22</sup>	344	Croft Sarah	Worrall Leonard Chas	Cottage		Broadheath				4	10	0	3	10	0
372	345	Smith John	Stokes John	Cottage		Broadheath		1	0	6	0	0	4	10	0
373	346	Ord Robert	Stokes John	Cottage		Broadheath				5	0	0	3	15	0
374	347	<del>Cullis</del> Curtis Edwd J	Griffiths Hy Ombersley Rd, Wor:	Cottage		Broadheath				6	0	0	4	10	0
375	348	Sold to Adml Britten	Hyde Thos. G Britten Admiral Exors: of	Cottage		Elms				4	0	0	3	0	0
376	349	Sold to Adml Britten	Hyde Thos. G Britten Admiral Exors: of	Cottage		Elms				4	0	0	3	0	0
377	350	Willis James	Hyde T G	Cottage		Frenchlands				5	0	0	3	15	0
378	351	Thomas John	Hyde T G	Cottage		Frenchlands				5	0	0	3	15	0
379	352	Stallard John	Holtham H. W Corn Market, Wor:	Cottage		Ashfields				5	0	0	3	15	0
380	353	<del>Tristan</del> Hinton	Holtham H. W Corn Market, Wor:	Cottage		Ashfields				5	0	0	3	15	0
381	354	Harris Thos C	Hooper David Lewis Clark & Co	Dew Drop Inn		Broadheath				17	0	0	14	10	0
382	355	Jones	Townshend Chas.	Cottage		Broadheath				4	10	0	3	10	0

<sup>22</sup> Note added: See No 343.

								imat xtent		Gross va	annu alue	ıal		eable due	
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	Р	£	s	d	£	S	d
383	356	Willis	Townshend Chas.	Cottage		Broadheath				4	10	0	3	10	0
384	357	Pugh Mrs.	Townshend Chas.	Cottage		Broadheath				4	10	0	3	10	0
385	358	Townshend Mrs. Emma	Townshend Mrs. E Partridge Lane, Broadheath, Wor:	Cottage		Broadheath				5	0	0	3	15	0
386	359	Townshend Geo:	Townshend Mrs. E Partridge Lane, Broadheath, Wor:	Cottage		Broadheath				5	0	0	3	15	0
387	360	Townshend Mrs Emma	Townshend Mrs. E Partridge Lane, Broadheath, Wor:	Cottage		Broadheath				5	0	0	3	15	0
388	361	Townshend Mrs W	Townshend Mrs. E Partridge Lane, Broadheath, Wor:	Cottage		Broadheath				4	0	0	3	0	0
389	362	Gregory Thos.	Gregory Thos.	Cottage		Broadheath				8	0	0	6	0	0
390	363	Stanton John	Lea Mrs. Wheeley	Cottage		Broadheath				6	0	0	4	10	0
391	364	Everitts Jas	Lord's Executors	Cottage		Lovington				5	0	0	3	15	0
392	365	Ellery	Lord's Executors	Cottage		Lovington				5	0	0	3	15	0
393	366		Lord's Executors	Cottage		Lovington				6	0	0	4	10	0
394	367	Williams Thos.	Lord's Executors	Cottage		Lovington				5	0	0	3	15	0
395	368	Lane Robert	Lord's Executors	Cottage		Lovington				5	0	0	3	15	0
396	369	Simmonds Benjn	Key Emily Peachley, Lower Broadheath, Wor:	Cottage		Broadheath				6	0	0	4	10	0

								imato xtent		Gross va	annu lue	ıal		eable due	
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
397	370	Williams Mrs.	Key Emily Peachley, Lower Broadheath, Wor:	Cottage		Broadheath				6	0	0	4	10	0
398	371	Lewis Willm.	Heath Joseph B Whitehall Inn, Rushwick, Wor:	Cottage		Broadheath				6	10	0	5	0	0
399	372	Edwards Edwd	Edwards E Jr. Bell Lane, Broadheath, Wor:	Cottage		Broadheath				7	0	0	5	5	0
400	373	Bradley Mrs.	Hellwig Mr Jno.	Cottage		Broadheath				8	0	0	6	0	0
401	374	Jones Saml.	Hellwig Mr Jno.	Cottage		Broadheath				8	0	0	6	0	0
402	375	Bruton Willm.	Hellwig Mr Jno.	Cottage		Broadheath				8	0	0	6	0	0
403	376	<del>Simmonds Chas</del> . Phillips Mrs J	Packer Key Thos Chas. Peachley, Lower Broadheath, Wor:	Cottage		Broadheath				6	0	0	4	10	0
404	377	Key Thos. Chas.	Packer Key Thos Chas. Peachley, Lower Broadheath, Wor:	Cottage		Broadheath				6	0	0	4	10	0
405	378	Rastall Mrs. T	Rastall Mrs. T Martley Rd, Broadheath, Wor	Cottage		Broadheath				8	0	0	6	0	0
406	379	Rastall Walter	Rastall Mrs. T Martley Rd, Broadheath, Wor Self	Cottage		Broadheath		3	0	7	0	0	5	5	0
407	380	Callow William	Callow Wm. Lower Broadheath, Wor:	Cottage		Broadheath		1	0	6	0	0	4	10	0
408	381	Morris William	B. F. S. (per Percy A Castle 21 Bolston Rd, Wor: Secy)	Cottage		Broadheath				5	0	0	3	15	0
409	382	Haynes	B. F. S. (per Percy A. Castle)	Cottage		Broadheath				5	0	0	3	15	0

								imate xtent		Gross va	annu alue	ıal		eable lue	
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
410	383	Gwillam Mrs.	B. F. S. (per Percy A. Castle)	Cottage		Broadheath				5	0	0	3	15	0
411	384	Jones Thos.	Spreckley Bros Ltd Worcester	Bell Inn		Broadheath	2	0	0	45	0	0	38	5	0
412	385	Walton Wm.	Walton Wm. Lower Broadheath, Wor:	Cottage		Broadheath		1	0	6	0	0	4	10	0
413 <sup>23</sup>	386	Jones	Worrall Leonard Chas	Cottage		Broadheath				6	0	0	4	10	0
414	387	Moor	Worrall Leonard Chas	Cottage		Broadheath				4	10	0	3	10	0
415	388	Allen Richard	Worrall Leonard Chas	Cottage		Broadheath				5	0	0	3	15	0
416	389	Agg James	Agg James Martley Rd Lower Broadheath, Wor:	Cottage		Broadheath		1	0	7	10	0	5	15	0
417	390	Anthony Mrs.	Agg Jas & Agg Frances Ann jointly	Cottage		Broadheath				5	10	0	4	5	0
418	391	Freestone Morgan	Agg Jas & Agg Frances Ann jointly	Cottage		Broadheath				5	10	0	4	5	0
419	392	Freeman	Agg Jas & Agg Frances Ann jointly	Cottage		Broadheath				5	10	0	4	5	0
420	393	Bickerstaff Alfd	Agg Jas & Agg Frances Ann jointly	Cottage		Broadheath				5	10	0	4	5	0
421	394	Boulton John	Boulton John	Cottage		Broadheath	1	3	0	18	0	0	15	5	0
422	395	Wall Daniel L	Bristoll John Union Rd, Shirley, Warwickshire	Cottage		Broadheath				25	0	0	21	5	0
423	396	Young T O	Palmer Mrs	House		Peachley				24	0	0	20	10	0
424	397	Ryland Alfred	Congregational Church Angel St. Worcester per	Cottage & Chapel		Moseley Rd				14	0	0	12	0	0

<sup>23</sup> Note added: See No 343.

								imat xtent		Gross	s anni alue	ıal		eable lue	
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
			H Shrimpton & others Rev Hallad The Manse Shrubbery Avenue												
425 <sup>24</sup>	40a	Walter Chas	Worcester C C	Police Station		Hallow		1	0	18	0	0	15	5	0
782		Powell John	Vernon. B. Bromsgrove	Land		Hallow									
787		Wheeler	Mrs Wheeley Lea	Land near Parkfield											
796		F. Williams	Mrs Smith Moseley Rd Hallow Eccles: Commissioners.	Land		Near Heath Farm Hallow									
798				Church		Hallow									
799 <sup>25</sup>				Chapel		Moseley Road Hallow									
805			Hallow Charity	Land now included in Churchyard		Hallow									
806			Sir H. F. Vernon	Common		Hallow									
809		Mrs. Caroline Farmer	W. H. Harrison Sinclair House 100, Masbro Road West Kensington Park London, W.	Pasture Field Pt. Peachley Farm	Ord. No. 451	Broadheath									
810		Mrs. Caroline Farmer	W. H. Harrison Sinclair House 100, Masbro Road West Kensington Park London, W.	Pasture Orchard	Ord Nos. 451a	Pt. Peachley Farm									

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>24</sup> Note added: P. R. 18/10/09.
<sup>25</sup> Note added: See 424.

								timat extent		Gross va	ann alue	ual		eable alue	
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	Р	£	S	d	£	s	d
811		Mrs. Caroline Farmer	W. H. Harrison Sinclair House 100, Masbro Road West Kensington Park London, W.	Pasture field	455	Pt. Peachley Farm									
812		Mrs. Caroline Farmer	W. H. Harrison Sinclair House 100, Masbro Road West Kensington Park London, W.	Pasture orchard	454a	Pt. Peachley Farm									
813		Mrs. Caroline Farmer	W. H. Harrison Sinclair House 100, Masbro Road West Kensington Park London, W.	Pasture field	456	Pt. Peachley Farm									
814		Mrs. Caroline Farmer	W. H. Harrison	Arable Field	Ord Nos. 375	Pt. Peachley Farm									
815		Mrs. Caroline Farmer	W. H. Harrison	Pasture Field	378	Pt. Peachley Farm									
816		Mrs. Caroline Farmer	W. H. Harrison	Arable Field	382	Pt. Peachley Farm									
817		Mrs. Caroline Farmer	W. H. Harrison	Arable Field	381	Pt. Peachley Farm									
818		Mrs. Caroline Farmer	W. H. Harrison	Pasture orchd.	383	Pt. Peachley Farm									

The entries in this table relate primarily to the situation of Broadheath which occurs in the records for the parishes of both Hallow North and St. John's County. In that it is not possible to allocate these records securely to one parish or the other, they are presented in the following separate table, as well as in the corresponding booklet for the parish of St. John's County. These assessments are included in the indexes in Appendices 2, 3 and 4, but are excluded from the analysis in Section 3.

								imate xtent		Gross va	annu alue	ıal		eable lue	
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	Α	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
777		Townsend Charles	Hyde Thos. G.	Land		Broadheath	7	0	0	25	0	0	22	10	0
778 <sup>26</sup>		Townsend Charles	Admiral Britten d'd	Land		Broadheath	9	0	30						
779		Palmer Geo. Exors of	Admiral Britten d'd	Pasture fields		Broadheath	19	3	20						
780		Stallard J.	Admiral Britten d'd	Pasture fields		Broadheath		2	10						
781		Rastle & Young	Exors of F. Rastle d'd per Lord & Parker	Cottage gdn & Smithy		Broadheath									
783		Mrs. C. W. Lea	Mrs C. Wheeley Lea Bromsgrove	Land		Worcester Rd.									
788			Chas. Maylett	Land		Upper Broad Heath									
793			A. Ell 17 Shambles	Mission Room (now Cottage)		Broadheath									
794			A. Ell 17 Shambles	Garden Land		Broadheath									
797		Various	Hallow Charity per Rev. J. F. Kershaw Vicarage Hallow	Allotments		Broadheath Village									
800			Mrs Wheeley Lea	Mission Room (Land built on)		Broadheath									
801			Mrs Wheeley Lea	Land of Vicarage (built on)		Broadheath									

<sup>26</sup> Note added: See No. 34.

								imato xtent		Gross va	annu alue	ıal		eable lue	3
No. of assessment	No. of Poor Rate	Occupier	Owner and residence	Description	No	Situation	A	R	Р	£	S	d	£	S	d
802				Church		Broadheath									
803				Schools		Broadheath									
804				Lady Huntingdon's Chapel		Broadheath									
819			Trustees of Broadheath Church Hall	Site of cottage adjoining Church Hall		Broadheath									

#### **Appendix 2. Index of Owners**

Capper, Maria 211 Agg, Frances Ann 417-420 Agg, James 416-420 Armstrong, Jas. Wm. 222 B. F. S. 408-410 Baldwin, William 15, 318-319 Bamber, Arthur 318-319 Bamber, Mrs. R. H. 15 Barber, Exors. 2 Bartleet, Rev. H. 67-71, 244-246 Bayley, Leonard Cox 122-125 Cox. Miss 17 Beauchamp, Earl 3-6, 145-150 Best, Exors. 17, 62-64 Bethell, Richard 324-329 Bethell, William 324-331 Boddington, Geo. 31 Boulton, John 421 Bourne, Mrs. Mary 151-152 Ell. A. 793-794 Bourne, Saml. 153-157, 188-190 Bowen, Miss Elizth. 77, 320-323 Bridges, S. 283-287 Bristoll, John 422 Britten, Admiral deceased 778-790 Britten, Admiral, Exors. 8-14, 35-36, 50, 192, 305-316, 375-376 Broadheath Church Hall, Trustees of 819 Bromage, Saml. 76 Brooks, Harry 193 Brooks, Henry 236 Griffiths, Hy. 374 Brooks, Mrs. Harriett 130-132 Broughton, Richd. 237-239 Hallow Charity 797, 805 Callow, Wm. 407

Capper, Willm. 211 Castle, George 341-342 Chambers, Geo. 338 Chambers, Mr. Wm. 336-337 Chambers, Wm. 338 Charity Trust 84, 368-370 Congregational Church 424 Cope, Eliza 332-334 Dadge, Alma Mary 225-226 Dadge, Benjn. 225-226, 275-276 Doughty, Mrs. Harriett 172-173 Ecclesiastical Commissioners 74, 140-144, 796 Edwards, E. Jr. 399 Edwards, Mrs. Mary 351-352 Euston's Trust 341-342 Evans, John 219-220 Everton, Miss M. W. 171 Fletcher, Thos. 217 Fortey, Mrs. E. 182-187 Forty, Miss 176-181 Gabb, Mrs. M. G. 240 Gardiner, Wm. 21-24, 191 Gregory, Thos. 389 Griffin, Thos. Henry 136-139 Groves, Mrs. Emma 349-350

Harber, Francis 79, 212-216, 360-361 Harper, Wm. 218 Harrison, W. H. 39, 809-818 Heath, Joseph B. 398 Hellwig, Mr. Jno. 400-402 Hicks, Caleb 16, 158-159 Holland, Walt 78 Holtham, H. W. 38, 379-380 Hooper, David 381 Hooper, Thos Geo. 277-278 Horton, Thos. Richd. 364 Hughes, Fred 367 Hughes, Mrs. Charlotte 219-220 Hyde, T. G. 377-378 Hyde, Thos. G. 36a, 37, 375-376, 777 Hyde, Thos. Garmston 34 Ideson, William 85, 356-357 James, Thos. 195-200 Jarman, C. 365-366 Key, Emily 396-397 Key, Emily Mrs. 61 Key, Thos. Chas. 403-404 Lambert & Rogers 1, 134 Lamberts 1 Lawrence, Mrs. 223-224 Lea, Mrs. C. W. 5, 80 Lea, Mrs. C. Wheeley 783 Lea, Mrs. Wheeley 18, 25-28, 97-99, 101-121, 170, 201-210, 339-340, 358-359, 390, 787, 800-801 Leeds, John 53, 229-232 Lee-Williams, Alice G 233-234 Lee-Williams, Mrs. Alice G. 54-59

Lewis Clark & Co. 381 Lock, B. W. 298 Lock, Henry 267 Lord, Exors. 47-49, 51-52, 391-395 Lowick, N. L. Mrs. 42-43 Marindin, Major Arthur Hy. 94 Martley R. D. C. 93 Maylett, Charles 75, 86, 788 Maylett, Margaret 353-354 Medlicott, Thos. 7, 126 Meredith, Jas. 60, 317, 362-363, 365 Munckton 334 Munckton, Thos. 335 Munn. Richd. 355 Nind, John 30, 46 Nind, L. R. May 228 Nind, Lilian Rosa May 46 Not stated 5, 798-799, 802-804 Packer 403-404 Palmer, Mrs. 423 Palmer, Mrs. E. 241-242 Perry, J. G. 100 Pitt, James 165-166 Pratt, Chas. 270 Pratt, Henry 65-66 Pratt, Henry S. 243 Pratt, Henry Saml. 281-282 Preece, Harvey C. 160 Pritchard, Exors. 32, 96, 345-348 Pritchard, T., dec'd 78 Prosser 247-248 Quarrell, Thos. Chance 161-164

Ranford, Henry 255-257 Rastall, Mrs. T. 405-406 Rastle, F., Exors. of 781 Rea, Carlton 249-250 Rea, Fras. Holland 33 Rea, Robert 249 Rea, Walter 167-169 Reynolds, J. S. 135 Robinson 227 Rogers see Lambert & Rogers Rose, John, Exors. of 250 Rouse, James 72 Rowland, W. E. 73, 235 Ryland, Fred Hy. 274 School Trust 81-83, 258 Severn Towing Path Company 268 Sharp, Wm. 127 Smith, Fred 194 Smith, Fredk. 19-20, 87-89, 264-266 Smith, Mrs. 80, 796 Smith, Mrs. Mary 271-273 Smith, Mrs. Susannah 251-254 Spreckley Bros. Ltd. 411 Stallard, E. 221 Stallard, Thos. 221 Stephen, Rev. John 2 Stephens, John 227

Stokes, John 372-373 Tearne, Ann see Tearne, John Chas., Tearne Ann & Tearne Ellen Agnes Tearne, Ellen Agnes see Tearne, John Chas., Tearne Ann & Tearne Ellen Agnes Tearne, John Chas., Tearne Ann & Tearne Ellen Agnes 269 Thorpe, Andrew 44-45, 259 Thorpe, Joseph 29, 91-92, 260-263 Tolley, Miss 176-181 Townshend, Chas. 382-384 Townshend, Mrs. E. 385-388 Vernon, B. 782 Vernon, Sir H. F. 806 Walton, Wm. 412 Warnby, Rev. C. C. 90 Warnham 366 Watkins, Mrs. 129 Wheeler, Thos. 247-248 Wilding, Wm. 128-129, 174-175 Williams, Fras. J. 40-41, 279-280 Woodward, H. 95 Woodward, Henry 299-304 Worcester County Council 425 Wormington, Thos. 290-297 Wormington, Thos. A. 288-289 Worrall, Leonard Chas. 343-344, 367, 371, 413-415 Young, Geo. 133

# **Appendix 3. Index of Occupiers**

Adams, Chas. 250	Boulton, John 421	Cook, Thomas 362
Adams, George 282	Bourne, Saml. 188	Cooper, George 8
Adams, James 265	Bowkett, Chas. 122	Cope, Eliza 332
Adams, Mrs. 166	Bradley, Alfred 321, 333	Cornes, George 254
Agg, James 416	Bradley, Jas. 352	Cornwell, J. 85, 356-357
Allen 339	Bradley, Mrs. 400	Cotton, Rebecca 173
Allen, Henry 214	Britten, Admiral 9-11, 36,	Croft, Sarah 371
Allen, Richard 415	192, 305-307, 375-376	Crowe 123
Allen, Thos. 117	Bromage, Saml. 76	Cullis 374
Allen, William 1, 134	Brooks, Harry 193	Curtis, Edwd. J. 374
Amphlett, Jno. 219	Brooks, Henry 236	Dancombe 170
Amphlett, Mrs. Mary 227	Brooks, Mrs. 132, 285	Daniel, Chas. 17
Anthony, Mrs. 417	Bruton, Willm. 402	Danter, Henry 167
Armstrong, James 59	Bydawell, Chas. 184	Dipper, Chas. Vincent 13-14
Ashmoor 133	Callow, William 407	Doughty, Mrs. 202
Aspey, Alfred 251	Capper, Maria 211	Dovey 246
Aspey, Wm. 28	Capper, Willm. 211	Duggan, Saml. 108-109
Baldwin, J. 84	Casidy 347	Dutson, Thos. 148
Bartleet, Rev. H. 67-68, 244	Chambers, Geo. 338, 363	Edwards, Edwd. 399
Barton, Thos. 158	Chambers, Walter 348	Ellery 392
Batchelor, Geo. 114	Chance, Thos. 141	Etheridge, H. C. 298
Bates, Mrs. 115	Checketts, Emma 261	Etheridge, Willm. 272
Best, Exors. 62-64	Checketts, H. 156	Evans 358
Bibb, William 296	Chester, Jno. Wm. 220	Everitts, Jas. 391
Bickerstaff, Alfd. 420	Clay 204	Everton, Fredk. 350
Blissett, Alfred 262	Clay, Ernest 174	Everton, John 331
Blissett, Frank 151	Clay, John 171	Farmer, Caroline 39
Blissett, John 180	Cocum, Jas. 366	Farmer, Mrs. Caroline 809-
Boaz, Thomas 15, 34	Collins, Harry 223	818
Boddington, Geo. 31	Collins, John 176	Finch, Leonard 284
Bosley, Mrs. 353	Collins, John Hy. 277	Finch, Thos. 155
	Commissioners 144	Finch, Willm. 271

Fisher, William 4 Fletcher, Thos. 217 Fortey, John 32, 78, 90 Fortey, Mrs. Ellen 182 Freeman 419 Freeman, Fredk. 364 Freeman, Jno. 139 Freeman, Mrs. 163 Freeman, Thos. 136 Freestone, Morgan 418 Gabb, Mrs. Mary G. 240 Gardiner 311 Gardiner, William 21-24 Gasett 10 George 120 Gibbons, Henry 276 Gillett, Edward 172 Goodwin, Thos. 187 Goodyear, Thos. 216 Grandon, Mr. 317 Grandson. Saml. 9 Green, George 260 Greenway, Miss A. 348 Greenway, Thos. 333 Greg, Francis 297 Gregory, Jno. 338 Gregory, Thos. 389 Gregory, Thos. & Sons 77 Griffiths, Chas. 314 Griffiths, Geo. 157 Griffiths, James 185 Griffiths, Mrs. 281

Griffiths, Thos. 355 Griffiths, Tyler 31 Griffiths, Willm. 274 Grosvenor, Chas. 111 Groves, Alfred 198 Grubb, Mrs. 195 Gwillam, Mrs. 325, 410 Hallam 278 Hancox, Chas. 154 Handley, Wm. 229 Harber, Francis 79 Harding 75 Harding, Anson 295 Harper, Wm. 218 Harris, Alfred 104 Harris, Thos. C. 381 Haynes 409 Hayward, Richd. 335 Herbert, James 98 Herman, John 156 Hewitt, Earle 143 Hill 199, 222 Hill, Alfred 248, 326 Hill, Charles 226 Hill, George 247 Hinton 380 Holloway, Wm. 203 Holtham, H. W. 38 Hooper, Henry 95 Hooper, Mrs. 249 Hooper, Thos. 199 Horne 215

Horne, Joseph 42 Hughes, Fred 367 Hurlstone, Wm. 103 Ingram, Miss A. L. B. 170 Jacomb, Wm. Horace 97 Jenkins 300 Jenkins, J. J. 59 Jones 382, 413 Jones, Edward 105 Jones, Francis 301 Jones, Saml. 339, 401 Jones, Thomas 230, 411 Key, Thos. Chas. 404 Lancaster 116 Lane. Robert 395 Lea, Mrs. C. W. 783 Lea, Mrs. Wheeley 26, 97-99, 101 Leeds, John 53 Lee-Williams, Mrs. A. G. 56-58 Lewis, Walter 324 Lewis, William 351, 398 Lock, B. W. 81 Lock, Benjn. Wm. 298 Lock, Henry 71, 267 Lodge, Henry 273 Lomsdale, Mrs. 368 Lord, Arthur E. 121 Mann, Herbert 237 Mann, Thos. 138 Mann, Willm. 159 Manns 158

Margetts, Leonard 87, 264	Packwood, John 135	Richardson, Walter 140
Margetts, Thos. 208	Palmer, Alfred 242	Robbins 313
Mason, James 152	Palmer, Geo., Exors. of 779	Roberts, James 290
Mason, Mrs. 275	Palmer, Mrs. 37, 51	Robinson 124
Maund, Miss 15	Palmer, Mrs. A. 33	Roddick, Willm. 35
Maund, Wm. Hy. 15	Palmer, Mrs. Emma 241	Rogers, J. 349
Maylett, Chas. 86	Pardoe, George 334	Rouse, James 72
Maylett, Frank 353	Parish Council 52	Rouse, Saml. 360
Maylett, Thomas 16	Passey 369-370	Rouse, Wm. 130
McAdam, Robert 269	Perkins 255	Rowberry 161, 212
Medlicot, Chas. 190	Perkins, Alfred 147	Rowe, Maria 288
Medlicott, Thos. 7, 126	Perkins, Annie 257	Rowley, Geo. N. 26
Meredith, James 60, 365	Phillips, Albert 239	Rowley, George 70, 207
Millward, J. 102	Phillips, Mrs. J. 403	Rudge, Francis 302-304
Minett, Thos. 23, 287	Pitt, James 165	Ryland, Alfred 424
Molineaux, Jno. 266	Potter, Joseph 360	Ryland, Fredk. 169
Monahan 235	Potter, Wm. 131	Sampson, Arthur 289
Moor 414	Powell, John 11, 782	Sampson, Chas. 238
Morgan 150	Pratt, Chas. 270	Sampson, George 253
Morgan, Mrs. 292	Pratt, Henry 2-3, 5, 65-66	Sanders, Mrs. 245
Morris, William 408	Pratt, Henry S. 243	Saunders, Richd. 186
Moss, Arthur 345	Preece, Harvey Chas. 160	Saunders, Wm. 113
Moulton, John 293	Pritchard, Exors. 96	Saunderson 280
Mumford, Joseph 189	Pugh, Charles 153	Scarlett, Thos. E. 125
Munn, Jane 328	Pugh, James 252, 294	Senter, Willm. 354
Nind, John 30, 46, 228	Pugh, Mrs. 384	Severn Towing Path
Not stated 88, 149, 183,	Rastall, Mrs. T. 405	Company 268
205, 231-234, 261, 283, 299, 318-320, 355, 359,	Rastall, Walter 406	Sharp, Wm. 127
361, 393, 401, 788, 793-	Rastle & Young 781	Shergold 330
794, 798-806, 819	Rawlins, Albert 349	Simmonds 340
Oakey, Jas. 119	Rea, Walter 110	Simmonds, Benjn. 396
Oliver, Chas. 24	Richardson, Geo. 128	Simmonds, Chas. 403
Ord, Robert 373		Simmons, Chas. 321

Smith, Arthur 213 Smith, Fredk. 19-20 Smith, Henry 164 83 Smith, Herbert 12, 48-51, 61 Smith, John 225, 372 Smith, Joseph 309 Smith, Mrs. 80, 168, 224 Smith, Richard 73 Smith, Wm. 179 Soley, James 316 South, Mrs. 162 Southall, Thos. 200 Spencer, Wm. 88 Sprague, John 310 Sprague, Mrs. 308 Stallard, Chas. Richd. 43 Stallard, J. 38, 780 Stallard, John 379 Stallard, Richd. 221 Stanton, John 390 Stokes, George 137 Stone, Giles 112 Tabberer, Chas. 209 Taylor 312 Taylor, Thos. 191 Taylor, Tom 340 Taylor, Walter 175 Thomas, John 378 Thorpe, Andrew 44-45, 259 Thorpe, Joseph 29, 91-92, 263 Till, Chas. 18

Townsend, Charles 36a, 69, 777-778 Townsend, Charles & others Townshend, Chas. 343 Townshend, Geo. 386 Townshend, Mrs. Emma 385, 387 Townshend, Mrs. W. 388 Townshend, Walter 341-342 Travell, Chas. 204 Tristan 380 Turner, Fred 346 Turner, Fredk. 333 Turner, Jas. 337 Tyler, Alfred 194 Tyler, George 118 Tyler, Mrs. 329 Various 797 Wainwright 74 Wall, D. L. 369-370 Wall, Daniel L. 422 Walter, Andrew 100 Walter, Chas. 425 Walton, Wm. 412 Watkins, Mrs. Elizth. 129 Weaver, Willm. 336 Wheatley, Mrs. 344 Wheatley, Philip 286 Wheeler 787 Wheeler, John 47, 54-55 Whitty, Mrs. 256 Wilde, Chas. 142

Wilding, Wm. 178 Wilesmith 106 Wilkes 327 Williams, F. 796 Williams, Frank 19-20 Williams, Fras. 82, 89, 322 Williams, Fras. J. 40-41, 279 Williams, Mrs. 397 Williams, Thos. 181, 394 Willis 383 Willis, James 377 Wilson, Emma 201 Wilson, Frank 73 Wilson, Willm. 315 Winders, Wm. 323 Winnall, Chas. 177 Winterton, Abrm. 107 Withey 197 Withey, Edwd. 196 Withey, Sarah 291 Wood, Francis 6 Wood, Francis J. A. 145-146 Woodward 210 Worcester County Council 258 Working Men's Club 206 Young E. 80 Young 345 see also Rastle & Young Young, George 25, 93-94 Young, Misses 27 Young, T. O. 423

# **Appendix 4. Index of Places**

'19' 9	Hallow Road 104-105
'192' 357	Heath Farm 54-55
Ashfield 12	Heath Farm, Near 796
Ashfields 38, 316, 379-380	Henwick 100
Broadheath 16-17, 36a, 37, 60-64, 69, 75-78, 83-86, 90, 96, 216, 317, 320-337, 341-357, 362-374, 381-390, 396-422, 777-781, 793-794, 800-804, 809, 819	Hill Farm 13-14
	Kenswick 312-315
	Little Eastbury 98
Broadheath Village 797	Lovington 79, 358-361, 391-395
Camp Fields 233	Melbourne Villa 240
Campfields 74	Moseley 42-43, 135, 161-164, 217-218, 269, 283
Church Lane 147-148, 167, 245-246, 255-257	
Crown Inn, Peachley 32	Moseley Road 184-187, 211-215, 219-224, 424, 799
Culliters 36	Moseley Turning 241, 247-249
Eastbury 18, 339-340	Mount, The 121
Eastbury Manor 97	Not stated 111-112, 168-169, 231-232, 234-235, 237-239, 242, 338, 787
Elmley Cottage 298	
Elms 375-376	Park Farm 4
Elms, The 35	Park, The 6, 145-146
French Lands 15	Parkfield 101
Frenchland 318-319	Parkfield Lane 106-110, 113-120
Frenchlands 377-378	Parkfields Gardens 103
Green Hill Farm 59	Partridge Farm 34
Green Street Farm 95	Peachley 32-33, 39, 48-52, 305, 307-311, 423
Green, The 26-28, 130-131, 133, 170-178, 195-205, 208-210	Peachley Court 8
	Peachley Farm 11
Hallow 2-3, 5, 7, 20, 25, 30, 40-41, 44-47, 56- 58, 65-68, 70-72, 80-82, 87-89, 91-94, 99, 122-129, 132, 136-144, 149-160, 165-166, 179-183, 188-190, 193-194, 206-207, 225- 228, 236, 244, 250-254, 258-267, 270-278, 280-282, 284-297, 425, 782, 798, 805-806	Peachley Farm, Pt. 810-818
	Pinch, The 29
	Royal Oak 243
	Severn Side 268
Hallow & Shoulton Road 31	Shoulton 21-24, 53, 73, 191, 229-230, 299-304
Hallow Mill 1, 134	

Shoulton Road see also Hallow & Shoulton Road 19, 192 South Road, Nr. Lodge 102 Spring Villa 279 Upper Broad Heath 788 Woodhall 306 Woodhall Mill 9 Woodhall Mill Farm 10 Worcester Road 783

### Appendix 5. References to other Land Valuation resources for Hallow North

TNA – The National Archives, Kew; WAAS – Worcestershire Archaeology and Archive Service, The Hive, Worcester

Forms 37

WAAS: 009:5 BA 8585/22 Forms 37 - Land, Hartlebury, Hallow, Guarlford, 1910-15.

### Field Books

TNA: IR58/93495, Board of Inland Revenue Valuation Office: Field Books. Worcester. Hallow North. Assessment No. 1-100, 1910.

TNA: IR58/93496, Board of Inland Revenue Valuation Office: Field Books. Worcester. Hallow North. Assessment No. 101-200, 1910.

TNA: IR58/93497, Board of Inland Revenue Valuation Office: Field Books. Worcester. Hallow North. Assessment No. 201-300, 1910.

TNA: IR58/93498, Board of Inland Revenue Valuation Office: Field Books. Worcester. Hallow North. Assessment No. 301-400, 1910.

TNA: IR58/93499, Board of Inland Revenue Valuation Office: Field Books. Worcester. Hallow North. Assessment No. 401-500, 1910.

TNA: IR58/93502, Board of Inland Revenue Valuation Office: Field Books. Worcester. Hallow North. Assessment No. 701-800, 1910.

TNA: IR58/93503, Board of Inland Revenue Valuation Office: Field Books. Worcester. Hallow North. Assessment No. 801-821, 1910.

#### Record Maps

TNA: IR129/3/753, Board of Inland Revenue Valuation Office: Record Sheet Plans. West Midland Region: Hereford and Worcester District. OS Sheet Reference: Worcestershire XXVIII 5, 1910.

TNA: IR129/3/757, Board of Inland Revenue Valuation Office: Record Sheet Plans. West Midland Region: Hereford and Worcester District. OS Sheet Reference: Worcestershire XXVIII 9, 1910.

TNA: IR129/3/758, Board of Inland Revenue Valuation Office: Record Sheet Plans. West Midland Region: Hereford and Worcester District. OS Sheet Reference: Worcestershire XXVIII 10, 1910.

TNA: IR129/3/759, Board of Inland Revenue Valuation Office: Record Sheet Plans. West Midland Region: Hereford and Worcester District. OS Sheet Reference: Worcestershire XXVIII 11, 1910.

TNA: IR129/3/761, Board of Inland Revenue Valuation Office: Record Sheet Plans. West Midland Region: Hereford and Worcester District. OS Sheet Reference: Worcestershire XXVIII 13, 1910.

TNA: IR129/3/762, Board of Inland Revenue Valuation Office: Record Sheet Plans. West Midland Region: Hereford and Worcester District. OS Sheet Reference: Worcestershire XXVIII 14, 1910.

TNA: IR129/3/763, Board of Inland Revenue Valuation Office: Record Sheet Plans. West Midland Region: Hereford and Worcester District. OS Sheet Reference: Worcestershire XXVIII 15, 1910.

TNA: IR129/3/811, Board of Inland Revenue Valuation Office: Record Sheet Plans. West Midland Region: Hereford and Worcester District. OS Sheet Reference: Worcestershire XXXIII 2, 1910.

TNA: IR129/3/812, Board of Inland Revenue Valuation Office: Record Sheet Plans. West Midland Region: Hereford and Worcester District. OS Sheet Reference: Worcestershire XXXIII 3, 1910.

## Appendix 6. Data standardisations made for the parish of Hallow North.

In preparing the data for analysis, the following standardisations have been made:

- Where entries appear in either owner names or occupier names, which use abbreviations or the full name, the listings in Appendices 2 and 3 show the full name for all variations: for example, for cases with the same surname only, where *Chas.* and *Charles* appear, these are all recorded under *Charles*; however, those entries with only the initial *C.* are not assumed to be *Charles*;
- Using the above logic, then:
  - *Alfd* and *Alfred* are recorded as *Alfred*;
  - Fras. and Francis are recorded as Francis;
  - Jas and James are recorded as James;
  - Jno. and John are recorded as John;
  - Thos and Thomas are recorded as Thomas;
  - Wm., Willm. and William are recorded as William.
- Three variations of owner names, *Eccl. Comms., Eccles Commissioners* and *Eccles Commissioners* are shown in Appendix 1: the listing in Appendix 2 shows *Ecclesiastical Commissioners* for all variations;
- Two variations of owner names, *Britten Admiral Exors of* and *Britten Admiral The Exors of* are shown in Appendix 1: the listing in Appendix 2 shows *Britten, Admiral, Exors. of* for both variations;
- The owner name *Lee Williams Alice G* shown in Appendix 1 has been standardised to *Lee-Williams, Alice G*. in Appendix 2;
- Two variations of occupier names, *W'ster Co'y Council* and *Worcester C. C.* are shown in Appendix 1: the listing in Appendix 3 shows *Worcester County Council* for both variations;
- The abbreviation *Adml* shown in Appendix 1 has been standardised to *Admiral* in the listing in Appendix 3;
- The abbreviations *Rd* and *Rd*. shown in Appendix 1 have been standardised to *Road* in the listing in Appendix 4;
- The abbreviation *St.* shown in Appendix 1 has been standardised to *Street* in the listing in Appendix 4.